Public Document Pack

Place and Resources Overview
Committee
Date:

Friday, 17 September 2021

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

MS Teams Live Event

Membership: (Quorum 3)
Daryl Turner (Chairman), Les Fry (Vice-Chairman), Mike Barron, Pauline Batstone,
Ryan Hope, Sherry Jespersen, Carole Jones, Val Pothecary, Andrew Starr and Roland Tarr

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ
For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on
01305 252209 / lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free public
app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once
downloaded select Dorset Council.
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding
committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen
to the debate online by using the following link: Link to view Place & Resources Overview
Committee live at 10.00am on 17 September 2021
Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android
phone will need to download the free Microsoft Teams App to sign in as a Guest, it is
advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.
Please note that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will
continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.
Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its
business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council’s
website after the event.

AGENDA
Page No.
1

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To disclose any pecuniary, other registerable or personal interest as
set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure
councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their
declaration.
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer
in advance of the meeting.

3

CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE
To receive any updates from the Chairman of the Place and
Resources Overview Committee.

4

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee
from town and parish councils and members of the public.
Public speaking has been suspended for virtual committee meetings
during the Covid-19 crisis and public participation will be dealt with
through written submissions only.
Members of the public who live, work or represent an organisation
within the Dorset Council area, may submit up to two questions or a
statement of up to a maximum of 450 words. All submissions must be
sent electronically to lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the
deadline set out below. When submitting a question please indicate
who the question is for and include your name, address and contact
details. Questions and statements received in line with the council’s
rules for public participation will be published as a supplement to the
agenda.
Questions will be read out by an officer of the council and a response
given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder or officer at the meeting. All
questions, statements and responses will be published in full within the
minutes of the meeting. The deadline for submission of the full text
of a question or statement is 8.30am on Monday 13 September

2021.
5

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS
To receive questions submitted by councillors. The deadline for receipt
of questions is 8.30am on Monday 13 September 2021.

6

UPDATED DORSET COUNCIL PLAN

5 - 40

To consider a report of the Business Partner – Policy, Research and
Performance. This report was also considered by the People and
Health Overview Committee on 2 September 2021.
7

COMMERCIAL STRATEGY - COMMISSIONING AND
PROCUREMENT OVERVIEW

41 - 104

To consider a report of the Service Manager for Commercial and
Procurement.
8

PLACE AND RESOURCES OVERVIEW COMMITTEE FORWARD
PLAN
To review the Place and Resources Overview Committee Forward
Plan.
To review the Cabinet Forward Plan.

9

URGENT ITEMS
To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b)
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall
be recorded in the minutes.

10

EXEMPT BUSINESS
To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following
item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the
meaning of paragraph x of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act
1972 (as amended).
The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the
item of business is considered.
There is no exempt business.

105 - 116

Agenda Item 6

People and Health Overview Committee
2 September 2021
Place and Resources Overview Committee
17 September 2021
Updated Dorset Council Plan
For Review and Consultation
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr P Wharf, Corporate Development and Change

Local Councillor(s):

All

Executive Director:

M Prosser, Chief Executive

Report Author: Becky Forrester
Title: Business Partner
Tel:
01305 224821
Email: rebecca.forrester@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation: That the Overview Committees make any final comments on
the draft Council Plan before it goes to Cabinet on 5 October 2021.
Reason for Recommendation: To ensure the Overview Committees play a key
role in updating the Council Plan in their policy advisory capacities.
1.

Executive Summary

Following the Covid-19 Pandemic, Cabinet decided that it needed to update the
Council Plan to reflect what we have learnt and what has changed as a result.
Cabinet asked the Overview Committees to feed into that update.
On 26 July 2021 members of the Overview Committees held a joint informal
workshop to review the draft Council Plan, with a specific focus on Covid-19

Page 5

recovery. Appendix 1 shows the output of that discussion. Changes are
highlighted in yellow.
At this meeting members also discussed the name of the plan, and whether it
should be changed. Suggestions put forward were:





Dorset Forward
Future Dorset
Dorset Council Corporate Plan
Dorset Council’s Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Communications Team has advised that ‘Dorset Council Plan’
remains the most accurate title and is the wording commonly used by local
authorities. Abstract titles including ‘Future Dorset’ and ‘Dorset Forward’ run the
risk of causing confusion. That said, officers recognise there has been some
confusion between this council plan and the local plan, which is a planning
document.
Members are asked to discuss this again. Comments and suggestions will be
passed to Cabinet for discussion on 5 October.
Once the wording of the Plan has been agreed, colleagues in Graphic Design will
produce a designed version. A summary ‘plan on a page’ version will also be
produced alongside the final version of the plan once agreed by Cabinet.
2.

Financial Implications

The council’s medium term financial plan and the budgets reflect the priorities set
out in the Dorset Council Plan.
3.

Well-being and Health Implications

The plan has been updated to reflect the impact of Covid-19 on Dorset’s
residents and visitors. Strong and healthy communities and staying safe and well
remain two of Dorset’s key priorities. Details of what we will do and how we will
do it are shown in appendix 1.
4.

Climate implications

Members of the Overview Committees have suggested that the climate and
ecology emergency form one of the council’s key priorities, now the climate and
ecological strategy have been agreed by the council. Appendix 1 provides
greater detail of what we will do and how we will do it.

Page 6

5.

Other Implications

None.
6.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low
7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

The Council Plan was informed by an Equalities Impact Assessment which was
undertaken 2019-2020.
8.

Appendices
i.
ii.

9.

Draft Dorset Council Plan (version 2)
Dorset Council Plan (2020/original version)

Background Papers

Dorset Council Plan, Cabinet, 28 January 2020
Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Proposed options for a new name:





Dorset Forward
Future Dorset
Dorset Council Corporate Plan
Dorset Council’s Corporate Priorities

Page 9

Welcome [from Spencer]
This is the Dorset Council Plan, which sets out our ambitions up to 2024. It incorporates the
political vision of your councillors and was originally developed in 2019 following a conversation
with residents, town and parish councils, and representatives from the public, private and
voluntary sectors.
The Plan has been updated to reflect what we have learnt from responding to the COVID-19
pandemic. Many organisations in Dorset stepped up to support our local communities through this
incredibly difficult time. Our communities have never worked more closely together. Organisations
across all sectors responded quickly, with selflessness, conviction and bravery, creating a ‘one
team’ and ‘Dorset Together’ approach to supporting the most vulnerable children and adults. We
are immensely grateful to them all, and we are keen to keep this spirit of shared responsibility alive
and build on these partnerships as we, hopefully, move towards recovery.
It is clear that in addition to recovering from COVID-19 the climate and ecological emergency
must inform the council’s decisions and actions for the foreseeable future. A climate and
ecological strategy and action plan were agreed in July 2021, and we have committed to
becoming carbon neutral organisation by 2040 and a carbon neutral county by 2050. We will
need to work closer than ever with you, our residents and partners, to successfully achieve it.
We must all challenge ourselves to do more to protect our environment, and this will involve
some difficult conversations about the nature of Dorset’s economic growth. COVID-19 has
highlighted the need to maximise technology, so we need to drive the rollout of full fibre
technology and 5G to enable people to effectively work from home, travel less, and access
opportunities online.
We must work closely with children, young people and families to safeguard their future
environment and help them to recover from the impacts of the pandemic. We want to help
raise aspirations and improve education, health and wellbeing, particularly in the most
deprived areas of the county. If we want our young people to stay in Dorset, we must give
them something to stay for, so we will also focus our energies on developing suitable housing,
and supporting skills and training.
The council predicted an overspend from the outset of the pandemic and our response has
added significant financial pressure. A combination of cost increases and lost income were
the principal causes. Our latest assessment is that the impact of the pandemic on the council
will have been in the region of £15m.
In response, the council has developed a four year medium-term financial plan which sets out
our budget demands, pressures and risks. We will champion the interests of Dorset, advocate
nationally the need for better funding, and work with our partners for the benefi t of our county.
I would like to take this opportunity to urge you, if you have any questions, comments or
concerns, to make contact with your local Dorset Council ward councillor. They are there to
represent your area and respond to your queries and concerns. Please keep them informed
about the issues that affect you and your communities, so we can continue to make Dorset a
great place to live, work and visit.
Spencer Flower
Leader

Page 10

Understanding Dorset
Population
Dorset Council area has a population of 378,500 residents, 29% of whom are aged 65 and
older (compared to 18% in England and Wales).
Dorset is an attractive place for people to settle in their retirement – it has a large population
of older people, and relatively low birth rates. Currently there are over 7,000 people in Dorset
living with dementia, and the number is increasing. Younger people often move away from the
area. The population continues to grow slowly, driven by people moving into the county and
longer life expectancy. The greatest part of population growth is among over 65s. Dorset’s
working age population is expected to see a marginal decline over the next 25 years.
The Dorset rural idyll can conceal hidden deprivation however. There are pockets of
deprivation, mostly in urban areas (mainly Weymouth and Portland) and also in the east of
Dorset in Ferndown (Trickett’s Cross), Wimborne (Leigh Park) and Verwood (Bingham and
Three Legged Cross) and also some rural deprivation due to isolation and difficulty accessing
housing, transport and essential services. Crime is generally low in Dorset, although anticsocial behaviour and rural crime is a growing problem.
The population is predominantly white British, with 4.4% of our residents from ethnically
diverse communities.

Natural, geological and historic environment
Dorset’s natural environment is a great asset.
95 miles of coast in Dorset and Devon are classified as a UNESCO Natural World Heritage
Site – the only one in England. Over half of Dorset is covered by the Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty designation; 7% of Dorset is protected as a Site of Special Scientific Interest;
and Dorset has one of the largest areas of protected lowland heath in Europe.
These designations together mark Dorset as a special place but also present challenges in
terms of available land for delivering housing and employment development.
Dorset also has a rich historic environment, with one in twenty of all the protected ancient
monuments in England, a well preserved pre-historic landscape and around 10,000 listed
buildings.

Economy and infrastructure
Employment in Dorset is high but, like the UK, our economy has a productivity gap.
Manufacturing, health, retail, education and hospitality are all big employers in Dorset. 20,000
businesses are based in Dorset: 86% are micro firms and fewer than 1% are large firms.
Dorset’s economy is worth around £8.1 billon and provides 147,000 jobs. Dorset has an
above average number of advanced engineering and manufacturing businesses. But there is
also a continuing seasonal, low skill, low wage economy with tourism and agriculture
significant industries. The area is rich in valuable minerals, including stone, sand/gravel and
oil.
Earnings are below average and house prices are high with affordability issues for many
young people and keyworkers. In 2021, lower end house prices were more than ten times
higher than lower end earnings in Dorset.
Dorset has no motorway but over 2,500 miles of roads. 96% of premises in the Dorset
Council area have access to superfast broadband. 3.1% of premises in the Dorset Council
area have access to full-fibre broadband.

The pandemic in Dorset
Up to the end of May 2021, 528 people in Dorset have sadly died within 28 days of a positive
COVID-19 test. In excess of 25,400 peoplePage
in Dorset
11(approximately 7% of our population)

were shielding and the council and its partners provided a wide range of support to our
communities, including:
 We handled 34,559 calls through our COVID-19 contact centre, coordinating food parcel
and prescription deliveries, practical help with everyday tasks and befriending
 We administered £250 million of government grants to support local businesses
 We accommodated 49 rough sleepers and homeless households as part of the “everyone
in” initiative
 We delivered 2,025 food packages and helped local COVID-19-19-19 support groups
 We worked with partners to provide vaccines xxx (likely to be over one million by October?)
 Vaccinated 91% of care home staff including agency staff had their first vaccine

Partnership working
The pandemic has changed how we live, work and think, and one thing it has proved is just
how much more we can achieve by working together, across sectors and organisations, to
protect those in greatest need. Hundreds of organisations responded to the crisis, including
voluntary and community groups, town and parish councils, nurseries, schools and colleges,
health and social care providers, registered housing providers and the police, not to mention
residents. We need to keep that energy and spirit of collaboration alive as we move towards a
‘new normal’, and focus on delivering the priorities described below.
We can’t do this in isolation. Key partners include (but aren’t limited to!) organisations in the
health and social care economy, voluntary and community organisations , education providers,
the local business community, Dorset’s Local Nature Partnership, digital infrastructure
providers, the Jurassic Coast Trust, Dorset Wildlife Trust, the National Trust, Natural England,
Homes England, Dorset Police, Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service, Community
Land Trusts, Public Health England, colleagues in the Integrated Care System, Dorset
Clinical Commissioning Group (and subsequent bodies), Dorset Healthcare Trust,
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council, the Local Enterprise Partnership, the
ambulance service, transport providers, the Armed Forces, probation services,.

Page 12

Our priorities – the climate and ecology
Dorset Council declared a climate and ecological emergency at its first Full Council meeting
and in July 2021 adopted a strategy and action plan setting out how the council will respond.
This commits us to taking direct action across our operations to become a carbon-neutral
Council by 2040, and through our wide ranging services and partnerships, to facilitate the
changes required for the whole of Dorset to become carbon-neutral by 2050, and to protect
and enhance biodiversity across Dorset.
The strategy set the direction of travel over 9 topic areas , buildings & assets, waste, water,
economy, transport, natural assets, food and drink and renewable energy.

What will we do
 Decarbonise our estate by 2040
 Facilitate greater renewable energy supply in Dorset
 Achieve a zero carbon fleet by 2040
 Enable residents to travel more sustainably






Work towards Become a low waste council and county
Support transition to a low carbon Economy in Dorset
Protect and enhance biodiversity across Dorset
Encourage a low carbon food and drink sector
Ensure Dorset is resilient to impacts for climate change

Dorset Council must work towards reducing its own carbon emissions output, food poverty
and the level of waste produced, all while meeting the increasing demand for food.

How will we do it
 Install energy & water efficiency and renewable energy technologies across our estate
 Support development Secure large scale renewable energy installation to provide our
energy needs
 Switch to Electric Vehicles and ultra- low emission vehicles
 Reduce our waste and increase facilities to reduce, re-use and recycle
 Support businesses to be greener and encourage low carbon sector skills and jobs
 Improving EV infrastructure, bus services and facilities for walking and cycling.
 To protect and enhance natural assets and facilitate net gain in biodiversity
 Support local food produces, food waste reduction and healthy low carbon meals
 To facilitate the development Develop a climate resilience plan
 Securing external funding
 Work with partners, community organisations and other stakeholders
 Monitor and report progress

Page 13

Our priorities – economic growth
We will deliver sustainable economic growth, increasing productivity and the number of highquality jobs in Dorset, creating great places to live, work and visit.
COVID-19 has had a very significant impact on Dorset’s economy, though precisely what
those impacts are, and how long they will last, will take years to fully understand. The council
has worked hard to ensure local businesses have received government grants, distributing over
£250m in just 12 months.
More positively, the pandemic has provided an incredible insight into the potential for flexible and
remote working, and this has enormous potential to support Dorset’s low-carbon economy and
promote digital skills in future. We need to work together to build on this opportunity, drive the roll
out of full fibre technology and 5G to enable people to travel less and access opportunities
online so that Dorset’s economy can emerge from the pandemic in a way which is stronger
and more environmentally sustainable.

What will we do?
 Recover from the pandemic and become more resilient to future economic shocks
 Support Dorset’s high streets to change and develop
 Support Dorset’s residents to access retraining opportunities
 Promote apprenticeships across all sectors and set an example by creating as many
opportunities within the council as possible
 Promote Dorset as a place to do business and attract inward investment
 Implement the Economic Growth Strategy adopted in 2020, and adopt a new Local Plan by
2024
 Support the growth of new and existing businesses, and in turn support job creation
 Improve the provision and use of sustainable transport and digital connectivity
 Enhance people’s aspirations and skills to improve social mobility
 Support growth in Dorset’s low carbon economy and skills

How will we do it?
 Continue to efficiently deliver any government support grants for local businesses to
support them through the pandemic and the recovery
 Advertise the government’s fully funded retraining courses as part of its Lifetime Skills
Guarantee.
 Establish an Education and Skills Leadership Board
 Drive the roll out of full fibre technology and 5G in Dorset to enable people to work from
home effectively, travel less and access opportunities online
 Improve rail services, public transport and reliability of journey times by working with
providers, lobbying Government and focussing on schemes to ease congestion
 Enable growth of good quality jobs at Dorset Innovation Park, our designated Enterprise
Zone
 Support growth in key sectors, including advanced engineering/manufacturing, agritech,
maritime commercial opportunities, aquaculture, tourism and the care sector
 Work with schools, colleges, universities and businesses to raise career aspirations and
improve skills
 Stimulate local business opportunities, innovation and skills development through council
procurement of goods and services

Page 14

Our priorities – unique environment
We will improve access to and use of Dorset’s environment, in a sustainable way which
protects it for future generations.
The pandemic has highlighted just how important access to green space is, particularly for
children, young people and vulnerable adults. We are blessed with a stunning natural
environment and recognise a new significance to it in mitigating the impacts of COVID-19-1919 and possible future pandemics. It is more important than ever that we protect and enhance
this natural asset for future generations.
Dorset has also seen an increase in visitors from elsewhere in the UK, which has brought
both benefits and challenges. While visitors play an important role in supporting the local
economy, higher volumes of traffic on the roads have put pressure on local infrastructure, and
greater social mixing has created concern about how quickly the virus might spread. The
council has within restrictions enabled and supported continued use of its country parks,
green spaces, rights of way and harbours working closely with partners to reinforce key
messages of ‘hands, face, space’ and reiterated the need for socially responsible tourism.

What will we do?
 Work with partners to support safe visitor levels and improve access to safe outdoor
spaces, including footpaths and bridleways, for everyone
 Monitor and respond to any additional wear and tear on the environment as a result of
greater visitor numbers
 Deliver services in ways that protect our natural, historic and cultural environments







Promote behavioural change to reduce waste and increase reuse and recycling
Lead and support communities to respond to climate and ecological change
Capitalise on Dorset’s unique environmental assets to support our priorities
Provide an environment that attracts business investment, tourism and a skilled workforce
Protect Dorset’s natural biodiversity
Build and celebrate community pride in our environment to help keep it clean and safe

 Support the development of appropriately located renewable energy

How will we do it?
 Implement our climate and ecological emergency strategy and action plan, working with our
partners, particularly town and parish councils and government
 Promote Visit Dorset, the Dorset tourism information site www.visit-dorset.com






Actively respond to proposals that impact on the environment
Deliver a highways verge management and street cleansing strategy
Deliver our pollinators action plan
Responsibly manage the spaces, buildings and land we own
Support local farmers, woodland owners, foresters and land managers to make
environmental improvements through agri-environment schemes

 Support the Environment Agency on flood protection projects
 Protect our environment from harm by monitoring and improving air, land and water quality
 Support and promote campaigns such as Litter Free Dorset and Love Your Dorset

Page 15

Our priorities – suitable housing
We will work with registered housing providers, community land trusts and local housing
partners to deliver affordable, suitable and decent housing.
COVID-19 has put enormous pressure on housing services. The pre-existing shortage of
suitable land for housing development, combined with the legal requirement to house
everyone who was homeless during the pandemic, and problems with the supply chain in the
construction industry, have added considerably to a service that was already under enormous
pressure. It seems likely that pressure will increase as the effects on the economy contribute
to housing insecurity and an expected increase in evictions. We must also monitor whether
changing work practices is putting additional pressure on market housing – purchase and
rents – from people moving into Dorset. Working with partners and private owners will be
critical in coming months and years to prevent homelessness and reduce reliance on short
term or poor quality temporary accommodation.
New strategies will be implemented around homelessness, rough sleeping and housing which
will draw on the lessons from the pandemic.

What will we do?
 Work with partners to continue to support people who were housed during the pandemic,
once that requirement comes to an end
 Maximise the use of council assets, and opportunities offered through our partnerships, to
develop affordable and sustainable housing, including the creation of more social rented
housing
 Bring long-term empty properties back into use
 Support people to access the right accommodation suitable for their needs and affordable
to them
 Raise standards of privately rented homes, focussing attention on those which do not meet
good and decent standards
 Promote energy efficiency and green initiatives within the housing sector to meet our
climate change objectives and tackle fuel poverty
 Implement new housing allocations policy and approach to prioritising housing
 Adopt a new Dorset Council Local Plan by 2024

How will we do it?
 Develop a mixed programme of new homes, including supported accommodation and
affordable housing including the Building Better Lives programme that will provide quality
housing and care for local people (www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/building-better-lives)
 Provide homes by 2024 in line with land supply target and the Local Plan
 Develop a comprehensive and ambitious housing strategy for Dorset
 Provide a balance of new high quality housing supply to deliver in a range of tenures and
price ranges to meet needs and aspirations
 Prevent homelessness and reduce reliance on short term or poor quality temporary
accommodation by direct action through the provision of short term accommodation by
adopting an Invest to Save policy
 Maximise the amount of affordable housing on new developments in line with the Local
Plan policies to promote affordability as a proportion of new developments
 Support and enable access to energy efficiency initiatives and grants

Page 16

Our priorities – strong healthy communities
We will work with residents and partners to build and maintain strong communities where
people get the best start and lead fulfilli ng lives.
This principle is focussed on community activity, and the power of our collective effort in
recovering from the pandemic. One of the most positive things to have emerged from the
pandemic has surely been the speed and determination of communities, voluntary and community
groups, town and parish councils, local shops and other organisations to support those who need
it. It has been a truly astonishing response and a testament to the power of our collective resource
and compassion.
Local council budgets have reduced year on year for over a decade now and the reality is that we
cannot continue to provide everything residents, businesses and visitors all want and need.
Responding to the pandemic has put enormous strain on budgets that were already insufficient, so
it is more important than ever that we find the best way of working together to help communities to
help themselves.
We know that COVID-19 has had a particularly damaging impact on children, young people and
vulnerable adults. We are anticipating a significant increase in people reporting mental health
problems, and we must work together at a community level to respond to that. We also need to
recognise that the impact of COVID-19 will last for several years, particularly amongst children,
vulnerable adults, service providers and business and this cannot be underestimated. Many will
continue to struggle with significant workforce issues which are exacerbated by our rural
landscape and geographically dispersed population.
Whether by volunteering for a local group, standing for your local town or parish council, making a
donation to a local food bank, offering your time and expertise to a local initiative or simply
learning more about your local community, everyone can do something. The council will continue
to support new community groups and initiatives to help make this happen.

What will we do?
 Keep residents and visitors informed about health and wellbeing , including COVID-19
 Work with and support the Strategic Alliance Board (a group of partners who have come
together to support children and young people)
 Maintain and strengthen the voluntary and community sector, including facilitating / helping
residents and communities to support each other
 Work to improve the social and cultural wellbeing of the area
 Enable people to feel a sense of belonging and to participate actively in their community
 Aim to increase people’s healthy life expectancy and reduce differences between areas
 Provide additional support to communities with the greatest challenges , including the
Stronger Neighbourhoods project in Weymouth and Portland
 Improve outcomes for children, and focus on narrowing the gap for the most vulnerable
 Work to find creative and innovative ways to deliver support and care to vulnerable adults to
support their independence and to try and reduce the call on statutory services
 Ensure where statutory services are needed that they are available at the right time ,right place
and supports where possible people reaching crisis point
 Focus on keeping the voice of residents central to all we do and regularly ensure we are doing
what matters most to people

How will we do it?
 Enable and support appropriate level of Page
COVID-19
17 testing

 Encourage take up of COVID-19 vaccinations
 Support communities to be connected, inclusive, safe and active
 Support the development of the Dorset Integrated Care System (ICS) with a particular
focus on the health and care partnership forum, place-based partnerships and strategic
commissioning workstreams
 Refresh the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Dorset, working through the Health and
Wellbeing Board, to inform the ICS priorities
 Support the development of a health and care strategy for Dorset that promotes integration,
early intervention and prevention, and tackles the most pressing health problems
 Work with the ICS and its statutory body to ensure resources to support the strategy
 Ensure a place-based approach to improving health and wellbeing identifies and tackles
the key inequalities in health outcomes in Dorset
 Implement the Cultural Strategy
 Work collaboratively with town and parish councils and communities to identify and deliver
what they think is important
 Provide an inclusive and accessible directory of community activities to connect people and
tackle social isolation
 Recognise when the voluntary, community and social enterprise sector is better placed to
provide a service and support them in their work
 Encourage volunteering to help build communities, reduce loneliness and enable people to
learn new skills
 Help people to claim and receive the benefits they are entitled to
 Improve mental health support for children, young people and adults
 Help ensure food available to buy and eat is safe
 Increase the number of people supported by LiveWell Dorset to be more active, maintain
healthy weight, quit smoking and reduce their alcohol intake (www.livewelldorset.co.uk)
 Protect people from harm from rogue traders and scammers
 Provide safe and useable cycle ways and footpaths, integrated bus services and
community transport schemes
 Provide and maintain access to rights of way, country parks and countryside
 Communicate quickly and accurately with residents using a range of channels
 Work with voluntary and community sector to identify innovative ways to help adults with care
and support needs
 Review our day opportunities service and develop and implement a more flexible offer
 Work with residents to develop our preventative offer to support people at the earliest
opportunity
 Deliver A Better Life Programme and the Greater Partnerships project
 Support informal carers and ensure we have the support in the right place
 Promote working in adult care as a career of choice and enhance training and development
offer working with community ,voluntary organisation, businesses and education partners

Page 18

Our priorities – staying safe and well
We will work with all our residents to have a good quality of life.
This priority is focussed on individuals, and the council’s duty to protect the most vulnerable.
With some packages of support running to several thousand pounds per week, this is the
area where the council spends most of its money, and experiences the greatest degree of
pressure.
Although COVID-19-19-19 appears to pose a lower risk of infection and serious illness to children
and young people, its social toll could be devastating. The pandemic has intensified the
challenges many children and young people face, and there are widespread concerns about the
impact on babies and the very youngest from lost learning, families facing job losses and
diminished income, and the impact of social distancing and lockdowns on mental health and
wellbeing. Children must now be a priority in recovery planning, both nationally and locally.

What will we do?
 Improve outcomes for children and support children disadvantaged by missing education
through the pandemic
 Support people to build on their strengths
 Make Dorset the best place to be a child; where communities thrive, and families are
supported to be the best they can be
 Ensure our children achieve the best educational results they’re capable of
 Work with families and children with special educational needs and disabilities to shape
better services
 Support vulnerable children with food and activities during school holidays
 Support people to live independently in their own homes and, when this isn’t possible, to
provide high quality care,
 Work to protect children and vulnerable adults and prevent them from being exploited
 Ensure good quality service provision is available when needed by those most in need
 Learn from living with COVID-19 and develop support based on good information and data
 Review how we use resources to ensure they are shared in the most effective and efficient
way to meet people’s needs
 Review mental health services with partners to ensure services are accessible to those
who need them

How will we do it?
 Deliver our Children, Young People and Families’ plan 2020-2023
 Provide good quality social care services
 Provide more specialist education within Dorset for children with complex communication
and learning needs including creating a new centre of excellence at St Mary’s, Shaftesbury
 Recruit more Dorset Council foster carers, shared lives carers and develop more children’s
home provision in Dorset
 Increase the types of care placements available for children and young people
 Develop youth support services
 Provide information, advice and support at the earliest opportunity
 Use technology – and help others to use it - to explore innovative ways to improve quality
of life and independence

Page 19

 Improve the way we work to deliver better outcomes for children and young people through
our place-based locality teams and Dorset Children Thrive model
 Improve the way we work to deliver better outcomes for adults
 Work with and support providers to ensure they offer good quality care and support






Implement the government’s Breathing Space policy for people struggling with debt
Ensure there is sufficient choice and availability of care for vulnerable adults
Work jointly with health services to support people who are leaving hospital
Develop a carers strategy
Work closely with health to ensure we have the right services available to meet the health and
care needs of children and adults

 Signpost those affected by the pandemic to services that support people with bereavement and
grief

Page 20

Dorset Council’s values, behaviours and
principles
As we have come together to create a new organisation, we have defined our
principles and values for our journey ahead. This is the focus of our transformation plan which
will support us to achieve the council’s priorities by 2024

Our values
 We are an advocate for Dorset on a local, national and global stage
 We work together with our communities and our partners to make things happen
 We put people first and design services around their needs now and in future
 We are open, accessible and accountable
 We use time and money wisely
 We value people and build on their strengths

Our principles
 Employer of choice
 Customer focused
 Sustainable organisation
 Effective and modern

Our behaviours
 Responsibility
 Respect
 Recognition
 Collaboration

Our equality objectives
 Fostering good relations with and within the community
 Developing and supporting a diverse workforce
 Developing, commissioning and delivering inclusive and responsive services

Page 21

Dorset Council’s transformation programme
Dorset Council has an ambition to be a modern 21st century organisation, re-thinking how we
deliver services. Following learning from the COVID-19-19-19 pandemic, we have developed a
transformation programme made up of 38 projects that will deliver savings of around £18 million
over the life of this plan and sustain and were possible improve service delivery.
Dorset Council will transform to:
 Be a key player in place shaping, optimising community capacity and assets.
 Be an early intervention, inclusion county.
 Be smart in its use of assets, estate and capital.
 Be a commercially minded council that demonstrates value for money services.
 Be a great organisation to work in and with - an employer of choice.
This will be achieved by:
 transforming our services with our customers, communities and partners
 operating at a lower cost with a reduced carbon footprint
 planning for the long term by investing in services and activities that set a strategic path to
managing demand
 using evidence and business intelligence to direct our decisions to deliver improved impact and
good value
 tackling digital exclusion so that no-one in Dorset is disadvantaged digitally
 building ambitious and sustainable capabilities that prepare the council for the future

Page 22

Which council strategies help deliver the council plan?
Strategies that support all 5
themes

Economic growth

COVID-19Recovery Strategy and
Workplans (Local Resilience
Forum)

Economic growth strategy
2020 to 2024

Dorset Harbours strategy (in
development)

Homelessness and rough sleeper
strategy

Dorset passenger
transport strategy 2015 to
2026

Dorset coast strategy 2011 to 2021 *

Housing strategy (in development)

Jurassic coast partnership plan 2020
to 2025

Housing allocations policy

Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Customer Transformation
Strategy
Diversity and inclusion strategy
2021 to 2024
Library Strategy

Bournemouth, Poole and
Dorset local transport plan
2011 to 2026

Unique environment

Page 23

Procurement strategy
2020 to 2022
Asset management strategy
2020 to 2023

Dorset Council climate and
ecological & emergency strategy
Dorset Council transformation
plan 2020 to 2024+
Dorset Council Local plan (in
development)

Staying safe and well

A Better Life+

Community safety plan 2020 to 2023

Community safety plan 2020 to
2023

Dorset SEND strategy 2018 to 2021*

Dorset Council communities
strategy (in development)

Building Better Lives+
Dorset coastal community team
connective economic plan 2018*

Youth Justice strategy 2021 to
2022

Dorset area of outstanding natural
beauty management plan 2019 to
2024

Placement Sufficiency Strategy+
2020 to 2023

Cranborne Chase area of
outstanding natural beauty
management plan 2019 to 2024

Corporate Parenting strategy
2020 to 2023

Children, Young People and Families’ Plan
2020-23
Pan-Dorset Child exploitation strategy
2020 to 2022
Youth Justice strategy 2021 to 2022
Corporate Parenting strategy 2020 to 2023
Placement Sufficiency Strategy 2020 to 2023

Cultural strategy 2021 to 2026
Building better lives+

Dorset rights of way improvement
plan*2011 to 2021
Dorset's Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy 2008-2033

Digital strategy
External communications strategy

Strong and healthy
communities

Pan Dorset reducing reoffending strategy 2018 to 2021*

People strategy 2019 to 2024
Budget strategy 2021 to 2022

Suitable housing

Bournemouth, Christchurch, Poole
and Dorset Waste Plan to 2033

Children, Young People and
Families’ Plan
2020-23

Health and wellbeing strategy

This page is intentionally left blank

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Page 25

Dorset - A

great place to live, work & visit

Welcome

It is clear that the climate and ecological emergency
must inform the council’s decisions and actions for the
foreseeable future. A climate and ecological change
strategy and action plan is currently being developed. It
will make a significant change in our approach and will
require a shared commitment and ongoing dialogue with
you, our residents and partners.
We must all challenge ourselves to do more and this will
involve some difficult conversations about the nature of
our economic growth and the infrastructure – particularly
the transport infrastructure – that underpins it. We will
drive the roll out of full fibre technology and 5G in Dorset
to enable people to travel less and access opportunities
online. We need to maximise technology so that ‘jobs
move to people, rather than people moving to jobs’.

We must work closely with Dorset’s children and young
people, not only to safeguard their future environment,
but also to improve their aspirations, education, health
and wellbeing. Levels of obesity continue to rise, and
educational outcomes remain low, particularly in more
deprived areas of the county. If we want our young
people to stay in Dorset, we must give them something to
stay for, so we will also focus our energies on developing
suitable housing, the skills agenda and sustainable
economic growth.
Financial constraints remain, and demand continues to
grow for services which:
• support children with special educational needs and
disabilities;
• keep children safe from risk of harm; and
• support vulnerable older people and people with
disabilities.

Cllr Spencer Flower,
Leader of Dorset Council

In response, the council has developed a four year
medium-term financial plan which sets out our budget
demands, pressures and risks. We will champion the
interests of Dorset, advocate nationally the need for
better funding, and work with our partners for the benefit
of our county.
This is a high-level plan – delivery will be detailed in
directorate and service plans as they develop. We will
need to work together with residents, partners and
communities to deliver our shared ambitions and to
monitor how we’re doing.
In the meantime, if you have any questions, comments
or concerns, please make contact with your local Dorset
Council ward councillor – they are there to represent
your area and respond to your queries and concerns.
Please keep them informed about the issues that affect
you and your communities, so we can continue to make
Dorset a great place to live, work and visit.

2020 - 2024

Our ambition is to put Dorset Council at the heart of the community. The reorganisation of local
government in 2019 simplified administrative structures, and was a big step forward, but we
continue to face some very significant challenges, locally, nationally and globally.

Dorset Council’s Plan

Page 26

This is the Dorset Council Plan, which sets out our ambitions for the next four years.
It incorporates the political vision of your new councillors, and has been developed following
a conversation with residents, town and parish councils, businesses and representatives
from the public, private and voluntary sectors.

2

Understanding Dorset
Population
Dorset (Council area) has a population of 375,000
residents, 28% of whom are aged 65 and older
(compared to 18% in England and Wales).

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Page 27
3

Dorset is an attractive place for people to settle in their
retirement – it has a large population of older people,
and relatively low birth rates. Currently there are over
7,000 people in Dorset living with dementia, and the
number is increasing. Younger people often move away
from the area. The population continues to grow slowly,
driven by people moving into the county and longer life
expectancy. The greatest part of population growth is
among over 65s. Dorset’s working age population is
expected to see a marginal decline over the next 25
years.
The Dorset rural idyll can conceal hidden deprivation:
there are pockets of deprivation, mostly in urban areas
(mainly Weymouth and Portland). But there is also some
rural deprivation due to isolation and difficulty accessing
housing, transport and essential services. Crime is
generally low in Dorset.
The population is predominantly white British, with 4.4%
of our residents black and minority ethnic.

Natural, geological and
historic environment
Dorset’s natural environment is a great asset.
95 miles of coast in Dorset and Devon are classified as
a UNESCO Natural World Heritage Site – the only one in
England. Over half of Dorset is covered by the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty designation; 7% of Dorset
is protected as a Site of Special Scientific Interest; and
Dorset has one of the largest areas of protected lowland
heath in Europe.
These designations together mark Dorset as a
special place but also present challenges in terms of
available land for delivering housing and employment
development.
Dorset also has a rich historic environment, with one
in twenty of all the protected ancient monuments in
England, a well preserved pre-historic landscape and
around 10,000 listed buildings.

Economy and infrastructure
Employment in Dorset is high but, like the UK, our
economy has a productivity gap. Manufacturing, health,
retail, education and hospitality are all big employers in
Dorset. 20,000 businesses are based in Dorset: 86% are
micro firms and fewer than 1% are large firms. Dorset’s
economy is worth around £7.1 billon and provides
143,000 jobs. Dorset has an above average number of
advanced engineering and manufacturing businesses.
But there is also a continuing seasonal, low skill, low
wage economy with tourism and agriculture significant
industries. The area is rich in valuable minerals,
including stone, sand/gravel and oil.
Earnings are below average and house prices are high
with affordability issues for many young people and
keyworkers. In 2017, lower end house prices were more
than ten times higher than lower end earnings in Dorset.
Dorset has no motorway but over 2,500 miles of roads.
95.1% of premises in the Dorset Council area have
access to superfast broadband. 3.1% of premises in the
Dorset Council area have access to full-fibre broadband.

Our priorities

Staying safe and well

c o l o g i c al E

m

Suitable housing
We will work with registered housing
providers, community land trusts and local
housing partners to deliver affordable,
suitable and decent housing

We will help to
deliver sustainable
development while
protecting and
enhancing Dorset’s
environment

2020 - 2024

e

dE

Unique
environment

Dorset Council’s Plan

at

an

ncy

Dorset A great place
to live, work
& visit

er
ge

Clim

We will work with
residents and partners
to build and maintain
strong communities
where people get
the best start and
lead fulfilling lives

Ecological E
d
m
an

ncy
ge
er

Page 28

Strong, healthy
communities

Clim
ate

We will work with all our
residents to have a good
quality of life

Economic growth
We will deliver sustainable economic
growth, increasing productivity and the
number of high quality jobs in Dorset,
creating great places to live,
work and visit

4

Economic growth – the current picture
Number of employees per business

Average weekly earnings

Dorset 7.3

£

*By 2029...

£

England 9.5
Dorset £523

150,000
people will retire

GB £571

23,000
new jobs created

Leaving 173,000 jobs to be filled

Workforce aged 50+

Page 29

UK £33.70
Dorset £26.70

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Dorset 36%

5

Value produced for every hour worked

England 28%

Of these jobs...
80%
Require GCSE
level or above

This gives a
productivity
gap of
£1.7 billion

Of these jobs...

New businesses

Superfast broadband coverage

England 97

Dorset 95%

UK 96%

Dorset 72

(per 10,000 working age people)
The rate of creation of new businesses is below the national
average and has changed little in the last four years
Data underlying the infographics is provided by the Research Team. For more information contact research@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk. *Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership Area (DLEP).
Dorset refers to the new Dorset Council Area that came into effect 1 April 2019, unless otherwise indicated. Poster produced: Sept 2019

60%
Require BTEC/
A-Level or
above

Our priorities
Economic growth
We will deliver sustainable economic growth, increasing productivity and the number of
high quality jobs in Dorset, creating great places to live, work and visit.

Page 30

• Support the growth of new and existing businesses, and
in turn support job creation

• Promote apprenticeships to develop the council’s
own workforce, and work with partners to improve the
creation and take-up of apprenticeships across Dorset

• Improve the provision and use of sustainable transport
and digital connectivity

• Support businesses and other organisations to reduce
their carbon footprint

• Enhance people’s aspirations and skills to improve social
mobility

Who will we work with?

• Support growth in Dorset’s low carbon economy and
skills

How will we do it?
• Adopt a Local Industrial Strategy and Economic Growth
Strategy in 2020, and a new Local Plan by 2024
• Drive the roll out of full fibre technology and 5G in Dorset to
enable people to travel less and access opportunities online
• Improve rail services, public transport and reliability
of journey times by working with providers, lobbying
Government and focussing on schemes to ease
congestion
• Enable growth of good quality jobs at Dorset Innovation
Park, our designated Enterprise Zone
• Support growth in key sectors, including advanced
engineering/manufacturing, agritech, maritime
commercial opportunities, aquaculture, tourism and the
care sector
• Work with schools, colleges, universities and businesses
to raise career aspirations and improve skills

• Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership
• Dorset Local Nature Partnership
• Schools, colleges, and universities
• Local business community
• Government departments
• Investors and developers
• Business support networks, including Chambers of
Commerce
• Town and parish councils
• Digital infrastructure providers

2020 - 2024

• Promote Dorset as a place to do business and attract
inward investment

• Stimulate local business opportunities, innovation and
skills development through council procurement of
goods and services

Dorset Council’s Plan

What will we do?

6

Unique environment – the current picture
Dorset environmental economy

Native species living in Dorset

Natural status

Reptiles 100%

(natural assets, agriculture, forestry, fishing, energy, tourism)

Mammals 93%
Butterflies 90%
...is valued at up to
15% of the local economy
and supports up to 61,000 jobs

Dragonflies 74%
Birds 53%

*Renewable energy production in Dorset

**Living in Dorset

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Page 31
7

Dorset has England’s only natural
World Heritage Site and two
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
covering 54% of the Dorset Council area

2016
5.5%

Nine out of ten Dorset residents said
the environment was an
important factor in their
decision to live in Dorset

**Amount of waste sent to landfill

2008

2018

2011
1%
70% reduction

Publicly available charging points in Dorset

Car and van emissions

Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs)
2029
23,000

2011
2019

1
30

Government targets:
All new cars and vans should be
“effectively zero emission” by 2040

2019
1,100
Current and predicted ULEVs registered in Dorset

Data underlying the infographics is provided by the Research Team. For more information contact research@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk. *Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership Area (DLEP). **Dorset County Council.
Dorset refers to the new Dorset Council area that came into effect 1 April 2019, unless otherwise indicated.

Our priorities
We will help to deliver sustainable development while protecting
and enhancing Dorset’s environment.

What will we do?

How will we do it?

Who will we work with?

• Improve access to our coast, countryside and
greenspaces

• Develop a climate and ecological emergency strategy
working with our partners, particularly town and
parish councils and Government

• Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty partnerships

• Promote behavioural change to reduce waste and
increase reuse and recycling

Page 32

• Lead and support communities to respond to climate
and ecological change

• Actively respond to proposals that impact on the
environment
• Deliver a highways verge management and street
cleansing strategy
• Deliver our pollinators action plan

• Capitalise on Dorset’s unique environmental assets to
support our priorities

• Responsibly manage the spaces, buildings and land
we own

• Provide an environment that attracts business
investment, tourism and a skilled workforce

• Support local farmers, woodland owners, foresters
and land managers to make environmental
improvements through agri-environment schemes

• Protect Dorset’s natural biodiversity
• Build and celebrate community pride in our
environment to help keep it clean and safe
• Support the development of appropriately located
renewable energy

• Support the Environment Agency on flood protection
projects
• Protect our environment from harm by monitoring
and improving air, land and water quality

• Dorset Local Nature Partnership
• Jurassic Coast Trust
• Dorset Wildlife Trust
• National Trust
• Natural England
• Marine Management Organisation
• Environment Agency
• Historic England
• Highways England
• Government departments
• Dorset Police
• Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
• Town and parish councils
• Voluntary, community and social enterprise
organisations

2020 - 2024

• Deliver services in ways that protect our natural,
historic and cultural environments

• Significant landowners

Dorset Council’s Plan

Unique environment

8

Suitable housing – the current picture
Population change 2019 - 2029

176,000
20%

Working age population

3%

We will see an increase of around
7,000 properties over the next 6 years

Bedroom demand

Housing supply needs to reflect this

Greatest demand for social rented housing
is in West Dorset, Weymouth and Portland

Average property prices are...

Property types

1 bed
57%

Dorset
2 bed
25%

3 bed
14%

x10
more than
average
earnings
4 bed
4%

House
x8
more than
average
earnings

England

This makes it very hard for first time buyers
to join the property market

More than half of the demand for
social rented housing is for one-bedroom homes

Rough sleepers

£398,000
average
price

Homeless households

increase

150%
Dorset

169%
England

There are 265 homeless households in Dorset

Dorset had approximately 35-40 rough sleepers in
November 2018, a decrease on the previous year
Data underlying the infographics is provided by the Research Team. For more information contact research@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk.
Dorset refers to the new Dorset Council area that came into effect 1 April 2019, unless otherwise indicated.

£162,000
average
price

Flat

Detached houses are the most common
type of property in Dorset

Between 2010 - 2017

increase

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Page 33
9

Area demand

increase

65+ year olds

2017

decrease

Properties in Dorset

Our priorities
Suitable housing
We will work with registered housing providers, community land trusts and local housing
partners to deliver affordable, suitable and decent housing.
What will we do?

Who will we work with?

• Maximise the use of council assets to develop
affordable and sustainable housing, including the
creation of more social rented housing

• Registered housing providers
• Town and parish councils
• Voluntary, community and social enterprise
organisations

• Support people to access the right accommodation

• Private landlords

• Raise standards of privately rented homes, using
appropriate legislation

• House builders

• Promote energy efficiency and green initiatives within
the housing sector

• Homes England

• Implement a new single Dorset Council housing register

• Dorset Police

• Adopt a new Dorset Council Local Plan by 2024

• Armed Forces

How will we do it?
• Deliver the Building Better Lives programme that will
provide quality housing and care for local people
(www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/building-better-lives)

• Community Land Trusts

2020 - 2024

• NHS partners

• Provide homes by 2024 in line with land supply target
• Develop a business plan for our emerging housing
company Homes Dorset
• Increase the number of new homes of all tenures e.g.
shared ownership, starter homes, key worker housing,
social rented housing
• Reduce homelessness
• Maximise the amount of affordable housing on new
developments in line with the Local Plan
• Increase the number of households receiving
assistance with energy efficiency from Healthy
Homes Dorset (www.healthyhomesdorset.org.uk)

Dorset Council’s Plan

Page 34

• Bring long-term empty properties back into use

10

Strong, healthy communities – the current picture
85+ year olds in Dorset

Life expectancy
85
84
83
82

increase

31%

Dorset
England

2020 - 2024

Page 35
Dorset Council’s Plan

85
84

Dorset’s residents enjoy
long life expectancy

80

79
78
77
76
years old

Over the next
10 years

11

81

65+ year olds with dementia

65+ year olds with
long-term health conditions and disabilities

83

England

82
81
80
79
78
77
76
years old

Deprived areas

10,200
2019
7,900
Dorset

Anti-social behaviour in Dorset

Dorset has few deprived areas in national terms,
but…deprivation is concentrated in certain areas

10%
Environmental
(eg graffiti)
17% Personal
(eg a particular
group or person
targeted for
abuse)

20% se
ea
incr

Dorset

2029

Dorset

Over the next
ten years

10 out of 11 deprived areas are in Weymouth & Portland

Workless households

Regular physical activity (adults)

Dorset
England 66%

12,900 households
12% (working age) households
Data underlying the infographics is provided by the Research Team. For more information contact research@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk.
Dorset refers to the new Dorset Council area that came into effect 1 April 2019, unless otherwise indicated.

Dorset 71%

73% Nuisance
(eg noisy
neighbours)

Our priorities
We will work with residents and partners to build and maintain strong
communities where people get the best start and lead fulfilling lives.

What will we do?

How will we do it?

Who will we work with?

• Work to improve the economic, social, cultural and
environmental wellbeing of the area

• Work collaboratively with town and parish councils
and communities to identify and deliver what they
think is important

• Schools, colleges, universities and other training
providers

• Enable people to feel a sense of belonging and to
participate actively in their community

Page 36

• Aim to increase people’s healthy life expectancy and
reduce differences between areas
• Provide additional support to communities with the
greatest challenges
• Improve outcomes for children, and focus on
narrowing the gap for the most vulnerable
• Keep Dorset connected, with better transport and
digital links between communities

• Provide an inclusive and accessible directory of
community activities to connect people and tackle
social isolation
• Help people to claim and receive benefits they are
entitled to
• Improve mental health support for children, young
people and adults
• Help ensure food available to buy and eat is safe
• Increase the number of people supported by
LiveWell Dorset to be more active, maintain healthy
weight, quit smoking and reduce their alcohol intake
(www.livewelldorset.co.uk)
• Protect people from harm from rogue traders and
scammers
• Provide safe and useable cycle ways and footpaths,
integrated bus services and community transport
schemes
• Provide and maintain access to rights of way, country
parks and countryside
• Recognise when the voluntary, community and social
enterprise sector is better placed to provide a service
and support them in their work
• Encourage volunteering to help build communities,
reduce loneliness and enable people to learn new
skills

• Residents
• Cultural and sporting partners
• Dorset Police
• Town and parish councils
• NHS partners
• Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
• Voluntary, community and social enterprise
organisations
• Department for Work and Pensions
• Bus companies and other transport providers
• Other councils including Bournemouth, Christchurch
and Poole Council
• Sport England
• Active Dorset

2020 - 2024

• Support communities to be connected, inclusive, safe
and active

Dorset Council’s Plan

Strong, healthy communities

12

Staying safe and well – the current picture
Children in care

Child protection rate

Level of development
Dorset

Dorset

470
children in
care in Dorset

44 per 10,000 children
England
45 per 10,000 children

Dorset Council’s Plan

2020 - 2024

Care homes

Dorset

2,263

2,656

2016/17

2017/18

This reflects an increased cultural awareness of
adult safeguarding and more informed reporting

47%
More than 1 in 4 people
are 65+ years old

increase

Page 37
13

Services for older people

Adult safeguarding concerns

71% of children achieved a good level of
development at early years foundation
stage, just under the England average

Over the next
25 years

This increase will put pressure on these services

Social care services

3,100

3,700

2019

2029

People aged 65+ living in a care home

*Social care jobs over the next 10 years

Dorset
People working in
full-time social care

8,250

People who work in
the supply chain

3,000

This is worth £330 million
to the local economy

20,000

4,600

Technical/professional
health and
social care jobs

Caring/personal
service jobs

Data underlying the infographics is provided by the Research Team. For more information contact research@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk. *Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership Area (DLEP).
Dorset refers to the new Dorset Council area that came into effect 1 April 2019, unless otherwise indicated.

Our priorities
• Make Dorset the best place to be a child; where
communities thrive, and families are supported to be the
best they can be
• Ensure our children achieve the best educational results
they’re capable of
• Support older people and disabled people to live
independently in their own homes and, when this isn’t
possible, provide high quality care

• Raise public awareness of exploitation of children and
vulnerable adults
• Target our resources in the areas of greatest need and
deliver services at a local level
• Improve how social care, education and health services
work together through the ‘Our Dorset’ partnership
(ourdorset.nhs.uk)

Who will we work with?

Page 38

• Focus on getting it right first time, proactively providing
early help as needs arise

• NHS partners

• Build and support capacity in voluntary, community and
social enterprise organisations

• Police, probation and youth offending

• Work to protect children and vulnerable adults and prevent
them from being exploited

How will we do it?
• Provide good quality social care services
• Provide more specialist education within Dorset for
children with complex communication and learning needs

• Schools, colleges and universities
• Voluntary, community and social enterprise
organisations
• Residents and communities
• Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
• Regulators
• Housing associations

• Increase the types of care placements available for
children and young people

• Service providers

• Develop youth support services

• Local Enterprise Partnership

• Provide information, advice and support at the earliest
opportunity

• Town and parish councils

• Use technology – and help others to use it - to
explore innovative ways to improve quality of life and
independence
• Improve the way we work to deliver better outcomes for
children and young people
• Design services with people, not for them

2020 - 2024

What will we do?

We will work with all our residents to have
a good quality of life.

• Prisons

• Dorset Police

Dorset Council’s Plan

Staying safe and well

14

Dorset Council’s values, behaviours and principles
As we have come together to create a new organisation, we have defined our
principles and values for our journey ahead. This is the focus of our transformation plan
which will support us to achieve the council’s priorities by 2024.

Our values
We are an advocate for Dorset on a local, national and global stage
We work together with our communities and our partners to make things happen

Our principles
Employer
of choice

Customer
focused

We put people first and design services around their needs now and in future

Page 39

We are open, accessible and accountable
We use time and money wisely
We value people and build on their strengths

Our behaviours
Sustainable
organisation

Effective
and modern

Our equality objectives
• Fostering good relations with and within the community
• Developing and supporting a diverse workforce
• Developing, commissioning and delivering inclusive and responsive services

Dorset Council is committed to:
A skilled and confident workforce which will be well trained, supported and enabled to take
decisions and operate efficiently within a clear accountability structure. The behaviours,
attitudes and approaches we take are key to our success.

15

Date published March 2020

Page 40
dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

dorsetcounciluk

@dorsetcounciluk

@dorsetcounciluk

Agenda Item 7

Place and Resources Overview Committee
17th September 2021
Commercial Strategy – Commissioning &
Procurement Overview
For Recommendation to Cabinet
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr G Suttle, Finance, Commerical & Capital Strategy

Local Councillor(s):
Executive Director:

A Dunn, Executive Director, Corporate Development

Report Author:
Title:
Tel:
Email:

Dawn Adams
Service Manager Commercial & Procurement
01305 221271
dawn.adams@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status: Public
Recommendation:
The Place and Resources Overview Committee is asked to consider the contents
of this report in respect of revision to the current Corporate Procurement Strategy
that includes the following key changes and recommend the revised strategy to
Cabinet:







Change of title to “Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and
Procurement”
Consideration to refer to ‘Principles’ rather than ‘Objectives’
Introduction of the concept of “Being more commercially minded” as set
out under the programme.
Introduction of new objective/principle in respect of “Effective
Commissioning” to ensure that cost, quality, environmental and social
value are early considerations and not left till procurement.
Outlining the requirements of the National Procurement Policy Statement
(NPPS).
Setting out the requirement for, at an early stage of commissioning, a
clear and concise business case.

Page 41

Reason for Recommendation:
It is estimated that 51% of the Council’s annual budget will be spent on buying
external goods, services and works. Effective commissioning and procurement
are therefore crucial in the light of ever challenging budget reductions. In this
context, delivery of the Council’s ambitions requires resourcefulness, being more
commercially minded and more business-like in the approach. The proposed
revised Commercial Strategy is the mechanism to ensure that commissioning
and procurement takes place in accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, is
effective and delivers best value to residents.
A robust Commercial Strategy that supports commissioning and procurement, is
of particular importance considering the pending Public Procurement Reforms
and the recent published National Procurement Policy Statement (NPS).
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide a general procurement policy
overview and details of the proposed revisions to the current Corporate
Procurement Strategy in both content and title, and to that the Strategy is
recommended to Cabinet. Revised titled proposed being “Commercial
Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement”.

1.2

Public Procurement Reforms
The consultation on a Green Paper on Procurement Reform closed in
March 2021 and it is anticipated a new Procurement Bill will be introduced
to Parliament at some point from September 2021. The purpose of the Bill
is to streamline and simplify public sector procurement regulations, which
currently mirror EU rules. Making new UK procurement rules that are more
modern and flexible, with more focus on wider society benefit and
community economic growth.
It involves replacing the four different regulations covering public
contracts, utilities, defence and concessions with a ‘single uniform
framework’. There are also plans to replace the seven current different
procurement procedures with three procedures only.
The outcome of the Procurement Bill will need to be considered and
reflected, if needed, accordingly in the revised strategy.

1.3

National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)
A head of the Reforms, the Government’s National Procurement Policy
Statement (NPPS) [published 3 June 2021], under Procurement Policy

Page 42

Note (PPN) 05/21 , sets out that contracting authorities procurement
activity must support the delivery of national public sector priorities
including generating economic growth, helping our communities recover
from Covid-19 pandemic, and supporting the transition to net zero carbon.
The importance of efficient, effective public procurement has been
underlined by Covid-19 pandemic and that it can play a significant role in
the country’s economic recovery.
This Statement instructs that contracting authorities should have regard to
the following national priorities in exercising their functions to
procurement:





Social Value - Creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills;
tackling climate change and reducing waste, and improving supplier
diversity, innovation and resilience.
Commercial and procurement delivery - All contracting authorities
should consider whether they have the right policies and processes in
place to manage the key stages of commercial delivery and identified
in this statement, where they are relevant to their procurement
portfolio.
Skills and capability for procurement - All contracting authorities
should consider their organisational and capacity, with regard to the
procurement skills and resources to deliver value for money.

 See Government announcement and PPN 05/21:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/procurement-teams-must-considerwider-benefits-of-public-spending
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521national-procurement-policy-statement
1.4

Corporate Procurement Strategy (2020-2022)
The Council’s current Corporate Procurement Strategy contains similar
considerations that are within the NPPS which are across objectives:
People, Skills and Development; Strategic Sourcing; Contract
Management; Partnership Working; Maximising the Dorset People;
Climate and Ecological Emergency.
The Strategy sets out that at least 5% evaluation weighting should be
applied within procurement activity in respect of Social Value outcomes
such as: Local Employment; Buy Local; Partners in Communities; Good
Employer; Green and Sustainable; and Ethical Procurement.
The Council’s own approach to procurement activity and its Strategy does
compliment the published NPPS however the Strategy is subject to review

Page 43

to ensure it continues to reflect the needs and the aspirations of the
Council.
1.5

Proposed Strategy Revision
Under the Commercialisation Transformation Programme (with crossdirectorate representation), revision to the Strategy is being proposed with
the intention of putting more emphasis on commercial and commissioning.
It is a revision rather than re-write. Working title being “Commercial
Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement”.
The purpose of the strategy to provide a mechanism to ensure that the
commercial approach to commissioning and procurement takes place in
accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, that it is effective and
delivers best value to residents.
Revised titled proposed being “Commercial Strategy – Commissioning
and Procurement”. This is in light of the pending Public Procurement
Reforms and the recently released National Procurement Policy
Statement (NPPS).
The proposals on the revised strategy is provided with this report in both
tracked changes format and untracked change format.
Appendix A - Tracked – DRAFT v5 – 05 07 21 – Commercial Strategy
Appendix B - Not tracked – DRAFTv5 – 05 07 21 – Commercial Strategy
Proposed revisions include:







Change of title to “Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and
Procurement”
Consideration to refer to ‘Principles’ rather than ‘Objectives’
Introduction of the concept of “Being more commercially minded” as
set out under the programme.
Introduction of new objective/principle in respect of “Effective
Commissioning” to ensure that cost, quality, environmental and social
value are early considerations and not left till procurement.
Outlining the requirements of the National Procurement Policy
Statement (NPPS).
Setting out the requirement for, at an early stage of commissioning, a
clear and concise business case.

It is acknowledged that further revisions may be required following the Bill
on the Procurement Rules Reform and consequent new UK procurement
law.

Page 44

1.6

Strategy considerations
The report is seeking considerations from the Committee on the revised
Strategy and the following:


Whether the minimum 5% weighting on Social Value should be
maintained or increased, acknowledging that the Council does already
apply increased weighting if appropriate and proportionate to do so.



Would the Committee like to receive business feedback, in the form of
representation of external business organisations such as Dorset
Chamber and/or Federation of Small Businesses, on the Strategy and
doing business with the Council. Reflecting that the Strategy continues
to have emphasis on “Local” and the focus on local economy under the
National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS).



Does the Committee consider there any elements of the commercial
principles within the revised strategy that needs more added focus?

2.

Financial Implications

2.1

None in respect of the proposed revised Strategy however financial
implications to be considered by the appropriate project team as part of
the business case and rationale for any individual commissioning and
procurement activity.

3.

Well-being and Health Implications

3.1

Refer to the Strategy in respect of Principle 1: People, Skills and
Development, the values set out under Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR), and Social Value consideration in respect of Good Employer.
Well-being and health implications to be considered by the appropriate
project team as part of the business case and rationale for any individual
commissioning and procurement activity.

4.

Climate implications

4.1

Refer to the Strategy in respect of Principle 7: Climate and Ecological
Emergency, the value Environmental Management and Sustainability set
out under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), and Social Value
consideration in respect of Green and Sustainable.

Page 45

Climate implications to be considered by the appropriate project team as
part of the business case and rationale for any individual commissioning
and procurement activity.
5.

Other Implications

5.1

None

6.

Risk Assessment

6.1

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk
has been identified as:
Current Risk:
Residual Risk:

LOW
LOW

7.

Equalities Impact Assessment

7.1

Refer to the Strategy in respect of the value Equality and Diversity set out
under the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
Equalities Impact Assessment to be considered by the appropriate project
team as part of the business case and rationale for any individual
commissioning and procurement activity.

8.

Appendices

8.1

Appendix A - Tracked – DRAFT v6 – 21 07 21 – Commercial Strategy
Appendix B - Not tracked – DRAFTv6 – 21 07 21 – Commercial Strategy

9.

Background Papers

9.1

None

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is
included within the report.

Page 46

Track change version

Commercial Strategy –
Commissioning and Procurement

The mechanism to ensure that the commercial approach to
commissioning and procurement takes place in
accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, that it is
effective and delivers best value to residents

This Strategy shall underpin Dorset Council’s commissioning and procurement
activities as it moves through a programme of transformation and will be
subject to review to ensure that it continues to reflect the needs and
aspirations of the Council
DRAFT v6 – 21 07 21March v11

Page 47

Commented [DA1]: Rename: Previous “Corporate Procurement
Strategy” – need more emphasis on commercial and commissioning
hence the name change

Contents

Commented [DA2]: Order changed but not track changed – to
assist reviewing the revision

Page
Introduction

2

Statement

3

•

Public Procurement Reforms

3

•

National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)

3

Corporate Approach
•

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm
Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm

3

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm

4

Challenges and Opportunities

Being More Commercially Minded

5

The Commissioning Cycle

6

Strategy Vision

7

•

PrincipleObjective 1: People, Skills and Development

•

Principle 2: Effective Commissioning

•

PrincipleObjective 32: Strategic Sourcing

9

•

PrincipleObjective 43: Contract Management

10

•

PrincipleObjective 54: Partnership Working

11

•

PrincipleObjective 65: Maximising the Dorset Pound

12

•

PrincipleObjective 76: Climate and Ecological Emergency

13

7

Social Value

Commented [DA3]:

13

•

What is the Social Value Act?

14

•

Proportionality

14

Applying Evaluation of Social Value within Procurement

15

Applying Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) within Procurement

15

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm
Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm +
Indent at: 1.27 cm

Case for Commissioning

Commented [DA4]: new

The Procurement Toolkit

Commented [DA5]: Moved to here

Mitigating Fraud and Corruption Risk

Commented [DA6]: Moved to here

Definitions

Commented [DA7]: new

Summary

18

Appendix A – Social Value Evaluation Questions

19

Appendix B – Corporate Social Responsibility Statements

22

Page 1

Page 48

Introduction
As with all bodies in the public sector, Dorset Council is publicly accountable for how it manages its
budget.
It is estimated that 51% of the Council’s annual budget will be spent on buying external goods,
services and works. Spend ranging from Stationery to ICT Infrastructure (Corporate); Speech Therapy
to Residential Placements (People – Children); Adult Day Services to Residential Care (People –
Adults); School Transport to Surface Dressing (Place); School Nursing to Drug and Alcohol Treatment
Services (Public Health Dorset).
The effective commissioning and procurement of these and other future requirements is crucial in the
light of ever challenging budget reductions. In this context, delivery of the Council’s ambitions requires
resourcefulness, being more commercially minded and more business-lie in the approach. and
procurement can make a major contribution.Decisions need to take account, as appropriate, of quality
and all the costs that will be incurred by the Council throughout the life of a contract period, or asset,
not simply the initial price. Commercial approach to commissioning and procurement can make a
major contribution.
This Commercialrporate Procurement Strategy is the mechanism to ensure that commissioning and
procurement takes place in accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, is effective and delivers best
value to residents of the Council’s local authority area. It supports the focus of the Corporate Plan of
Dorset Council to make Dorset a great place to live, work and visit, priorities being:
•
•
•
•
•

Economic Growth
Unique Environment
Suitable Housing
Strong, Healthy Communities
Staying Safe and Well

As with other local authorities, Dorset Council’s future looks set to be increasingly dependent to the
success of its local economy therefore there is a need to understand the impact of spending decisions
to the local tax base and ways to retain the Dorset Pound within that economy. For the purpose of this
Strategy, the definition of “Local” means the postcodes of the authority area of Dorset Council and
shall apply equally to residents, service users and suppliers.
Through commissioning and procurement activity the Council’s goal is to achieve long-term
sustainable commercial success with the ambition to help deliver benefits to communities through
specifying additional social value, engaging with local suppliers and voluntary sector groups to
maximise the “Dorset Pound”. By the utilisation of social value criteria, the Council can also maximise
the social, environmental and economic impact, as being more commercial of procurement, as
procurement is so much more than purchasing of goods, services or works.

Page 2

Page 49

Commented [DA8]: This is reflecting the NPPS

What is ‘Procurement’?

Commented [DA9]: Moved further back in the strategy

Statement
Delivering value for money is key to what commercialprocurement activity does.
This Commercialorporate Procurement Strategy – Commissioning , identifies and describes the
Council’s commercial principles procurement objectives under five key themes, with explained key
objectivesactions to deliver the ambition
It applies to all commissioning and procurement activity of Dorset Council.
It is recognised that the context in which the Council operates will continue to evolve, both locally and
nationally. Therefore, this strategy will be updated and refreshed as necessary to ensure that it reflects
the continued ambition to have a commercial approach to achieve innovative commissioning and
procurement that is innovative, efficient and effective. and commercial activity.
This strategy is subordinate to the Council’s Constitution including Contract Procedure Rules and is
complemented by the following corporate guides:
•
•

Contract Management Procedure Guide
Guide to Managing Contract Criticality

Public Procurement Reforms
The consultation on a Green Paper on Procurement Reform closed in March 2021 and it is anticipated
a new Procurement Bill will be introduced to Parliament at some point from September 2021. The
purpose of the Bill is to streamline and simplify public sector procurement regulations, which currently
mirror EU rules. Making new UK procurement rules that are more modern and flexible, with more
focus on wider society benefit and community economic growth.
It involves replacing the four different regulations covering public contracts, utilities, defence and
concessions with a ‘single uniform framework’. There are also plans to replace the seven current
different procurement procedures with three procedures only.
This Strategy may be subject to revision depending on the outcome of the Public Procurement
Reforms.
National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)
This Government Statement states to contracting authorities that public procurement should be
leveraged to support priority national and local outcomes for public benefit. The Statement sets out the
national priorities that all contracting authorities should have regard to their procurement where it is
relevant to the subject matter of the contract and it is proportionate to do so. It states that contracting
authorities should consider the following national priority outcomes alongside any additional local
priorities
•

Creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills
o increasing opportunities for entrepreneurship and helping new and/or small businesses
to grow, supporting higher economic growth and greater business creation;

Page 3

Page 50

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

o
o

increasing employment opportunities particularly for those who face high barriers to
employment or who are located in disadvantaged areas;
extending training opportunities, particularly for people in industries with known skills
shortages or in high growth sectors.

•

Tackling climate change and reducing waste
o contributing to the UK Government’s legally-binding target to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions to net zero by 2050;
o reducing waste, improving resource efficiency and contributing to the move towards a
circular economy;
o identifying and prioritising opportunities in sustainable procurement to deliver additional
environmental benefits, for example enhanced biodiversity, through the delivery of the
contract.

•

Improving supplier diversity, innovation and resilience
o creating a more diverse supply chain to deliver the contract, which will better support
start-ups, small and medium-sized businesses and VCSEs in doing business on public
sector contracts;
o increasing innovation and the use of disruptive technologies and business models
throughout the supply chain, to deliver lower cost and/or higher quality goods and
services, and encourage the wider adoption of innovation;
o contributing to the development of scalable and future-proofed new methods to
modernise delivery and increase productivity.

This Commercial Strategy compliments and supports the National Procurement Policy Statement.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521-national-procurement-policystatement

Corporate Approach
In delivering value means to ensure that commercial arrangements and contracts awarded by the
Council provide great value for money, and that spend is used to deliver social value to residents and
take opportunities for added value. The corporate approach is to provide a central team of
procurement professionals within the Commercial and Procurement service, based on a Business
Partner Model, that will support business areas of the Council by:
•

Supporting business areas by Pproviding professional advice and insight on markets, suppliers
and commercial options to support service delivery.

•

Leading the development of plans for how the Council shall spend money on third party
arrangements across the private, public and voluntary/community sectors.

•

Leading the Commercialisation Transformation Programme to develop and embed the
approach of “Being more commercially minded” through cross-directorate working and training.

•

Ensuring that contracts are commissioned, developed and awarded in accordance with this
Strategy, Procurement Legislation and the Council’s own Contract Procedure Rules

•

Providing advice, support and training to business areas in managing contracts effectively in
line with this Commercialrporate Procurement Strategy, and the Council’s Contract
Management Procedure Guide and the Council’s Guide to Managing Contract Criticality.
Page 4

Page 51

•

Driving Social Value and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through
commercialprocurement activity to encourage the Council, and it’s supply chain, to engage and
spend with local suppliers and communities to maximise the “Dorset Pound”.

•

Working with business areas to identify savings and capture opportunities through
commissioning, procurement and contract convergence and re-procured to drive value from
contracts.

Challenges and Opportunities
The Council recognises that it faces many challenges, but equally opportunities, in the delivery of a
corporate approach commission and procurement, and it needs to be more commercially minded in
order to tackle these challenges. Challenges and opportunities such as:The following are several
challenges and opportunities to the delivery of this corporate approach:
•

Managing market and cost pressures in an ongoing period of financial austerity for local
government, whilst in some sectors facing increasing price and demand from the private sector
that impacts the Council’s market influence.

•

Delivering and building on successful partnerships, e.g., NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning
Group, and driving collaboration through procurement, both locally and regionally.

•

Changes to legislation relevant to future commissioning intentions and changes to procurement
legislation.

•

Maximising the use of technology to drive simpler and more cost-effective processes for
commissioners, procurement, buyers and suppliers.

•

Ensuring that the Council has the necessary skills, capability and capacity to deliver its
commercial procurement priorities.

•

Exploring innovative contracting commercial models and collaboration with others.

.

Page 5

Page 52

Being More Commercially Minded
The term “Being more commercially minded” and other terms such as commercialism, commercial,
commercialisation etc mean different things to different people. For the Council, the definition of “being
more commercially minded” will be four themes shown below as separate, but connected,
workstreams that will compliment this Commercial Strategy alongside the Council’s Commercialisation
Transformation Programme.

Behaving in a more
business-like way
Adopting some of the
positive culture and
behaviours that are
associated with
commercial
organisations

Making money
Doing something that
generates profit

Being more
commercially
minded

Being business
friendly
To promote local
growth and prosperity

Commissioning as
One Council
Identify needs, develop
service models and the
market to meet those
needs in the most costeffective way, as One
Council

Page 6

Page 53

The Commissioning Cycle
As illustrated below, The Institute of Public Care (IPC) links within a commissioning cycle a series of
commissioning activities that are grouped under four key performance management elements:
Understand ➔ Plan ➔ Do ➔ Review
For the Council to have effective third-part arrangements in place, procurement activity has a role to
play throughout the commissioning cycle; from Understand to Review.

Understand

Plan

Review

Do

Page 7

Page 54

Fraud and Corruption Risks in Procurement

Commented [DA10]: Moved to further back in the strategy

The Procurement Toolkit

Commented [DA11]: Moved to further back in the strategy

Strategy Vision
This section describes the vision for the Council in terms of this Commercialrporate Procurement
Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement.
The strategy principlessix objectives of the strategy provide the structure and framework from which
the Council will plan and prioritise the commercialprocurement activity of commissioning and
procurement. The principlesobjectives are summarised below and will be subject to review each year
of the strategy. Each of the principles areobjective is of equalas importancet as another in ensuring
the delivery of the Council’s commercialprocurement ambitions and to meet overall purpose.

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 1:

PEOPLE, SKILLS AND DEVELOPMENT

The Challenge
To have a continued focus on people, skills and development. It is recognised that commercial
activityprocurement has a wider role to play in the development of contract management and other
commercial skills to enable the Council to be commercially effective – “Being more commercially
minded”.across the Council.
To ensure that the professional skills and experience that the Council staff have are used in a wide
variety of projects through providing innovative commercial support, to a growing range of projects that
optimise the use of Councils assets, drive income and budget savings. Investing in, and supporting
these activities, will continue to be part of the Council’s commercialprocurement strategy.
Objectives;Key actions

•
•
•
•
•
•

To attract, develop and retain the very best procurement and commercial staff with the
professional, personal and technical skills to deliver value for money through commissioning,
procurement and contract management activity.
Encourage and embed coaching, high performance and positive behaviours. Maintain a
development and retention programme, capturing professional, personal and technical skills for
staff.
Place the best people by encouraging internal career development at all levels as well as
recruiting the best of external expertise where needed.
Invest in opportunities to grow the right talent including apprenticeships.
Continue and grow our commitment to a “learning culture” organisation, through adopting a
“train the trainer” approach, and knowledge share groups, such as the commercial network
under the Commercialisation Transformation Programme..
Develop and deliver a high-quality training offer, including skills to develop a commercial
mindset. This to include, awareness and training in respect of: commissioning, procurement;

Page 8

Page 55

•
•

in tendering, contract management and behaviours to enable improved Supplier Relationship
Management (SRM).
Ensure resources are effectively used, supported by effective planning of available resource
against the required workload using the “Forward Look” within the Accord e-contract
management system (e-CMS) and other available tools.
Attract and retain kKnowledgeable staffprocurement people who add value across a range of
activities and bring excellent commercial skills and understanding of services. This will enable
the Council to achieve the best commercial results and outcomes for residents.

PRINCIPLE 2:

EFFECTIVE COMMISSIONING

The Challenge
To identify needs, develop effective commissioning models and to develop the market to meet those
needs in the most cost-effective way. Commissioning to be a co-design process with others, internally
and externally, that: tests ideas; capacity and appetite for developing services to tackle outcomes;
develops innovative operating models; and outcome specifications. Approach “To commission as
One Council”.
It is recognised that commissioning option appraisals may not always conclude that procurement to
secure a supplier delivery is the best value route to meet the identified need. An appraisal may
conclude that insourcing, in part or wholly, represents the best value for the Council. Whatever the
route the commissioning should be an effective model.
Objectives:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

To be able to demonstrate how the commissioning improves outcomes for Council’s residents
and contributes to the environmental targets set out in the Council’s Climate and Ecological
Emergency Strategy. These should be an early consideration in commissioning; not left until
procurement.
To be clear whether the commissioning is outcome based, i.e. to provide opportunities for
supplier innovation and methodologies; or whether it is input based, i.e. needs to be rigidly
prescribed.
Cost, quality, environmental and social value considerations, and the balance of risk between
the Council and supplier, are all equally important factors to deliberate as part of feasibility and
development in order to achieve best value and a cost-effective model.
Promote co-production, where applicable, that involves residents, communities and providers
working with the Council in designing and developing more effective services.
Should seek, where applicable, to empower Council customers, both internally and externally,
to self-manage and reduce dependency.
To use modern and progressive processes that provide opportunities for local suppliers, in
particular small / micro businesses, that allows them the potential to expand on their offer to
the Council as they grow and develop.
To engage early interested stakeholders, both internally and externally, to ensure there is an
opportunity for them to contribute and influence commissioning intentions.
Ensure compliance to legislation relative to the commissioning.
Commissioners to have full visibility of the financial costs, the market view, and performance
as well as service outcomes, in order to inform understanding of value for money in
subsequent commissioning.
Page 9

Page 56

•
•

Obtain detailed data and other management information from incumbent suppliers that
captures the evidence of what works and informs the future development of the required need.
To provide clear and proportionate business cases for each commissioning activity, prior to
commencement, in accordance with page 19 “Case for Commissioning”.

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 32:

STRATEGIC SOURCING

The Challenge
The Council’s staff and suppliers expects that high quality and efficient strategic sourcing is
delivered. Simple and streamlined processes, delivered by experts with a strong focus on the supplier
experience will be a core part of commercial activity - “Being more business friendly”.procurement
processes.
The Council will continuously review its commercialprocurement approach to ensure it responds to
feedback from suppliers and others, to develop future commercial approaches accordingly. This
includes the eProcurement system that is used for procurement and optimising the statutory and legal
boundaries of relevantprocurement legislation, e.g. procurement rules, to deliver the best outcomes.
Underlying all commercialprocurement activities there needs to be a consistent culture of strong
project management and programme governance. Securing the very best value from all
suchprocurement activities, and a robust, structured and well managed approach is vital. This will
ensure that the Council is a using the resource and skills it has, to deliver the very best return within
decreased budgets.
Objectives:Key actions
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Strategic sourcing activity (the end-to-end sourcing process) to be simple, clear and efficient.
To deliver a sourcing process that achieves successful outcomes and is a positive and
effective experience for suppliers and staff.
The procurement pipeline will be maintained using the “Forward Look” within Accord e-CMS
and will be visible across colleagues in Finance, Legal and Business Operations.
The delivery of all procurement projects to be robustly managed in a visible way and in line
with agreed methodology as set out in the Council’s Procurement Toolkit
Align strategic sourcing plans to the service outcomes to ensure a clear and robust programme
of sourcing activity.
Best practice is driven through the tools and nationalbest practice standards and these are
reviewed regularly.
Implement a consistent feedback process, with the results being used to make genuine and
sustainable improvements to procurement processes, including both commissioning and
procurement.
Provide consistent feedback to suppliers that are unsuccessful in securing Council business to
allow them to develop for future opportunities.
Ensure compliance to relevantprocurement legislation and the Council’s own rules, e.g.
Contract Procedure Rules, Scheme of Delegation, etc..
Define and understand the internal cost of strategic sourcing to ensure the end-to-end sourcing
process in the most efficient way.
Define and understand all costs, such as transportation, that are not necessary directly
procured as part of the core delivery.
Page 10

Page 57

•
•
•

Explore commercial opportunities for all aspects of the strategic sourcing process.
Maximise the use of intelligence around suppliers, markets, service design and demand,
through early market engagement and market development; consider how the commercial
approach and contract design could be set to address potential market weaknesses.
Be ready to develop strategies for new areas of spend as business needs develop, transform
and embed in the Council.

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 43:

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

The Challenge
Improving contract management continues to be a key deliverable for the Council. It is essential that
a contract management framework to strategic and critical suppliers is applied in accordance with the
Contract Management Procedure Guide and the Guide to Managing Critical Contracts. As suppliers
delivering council services evolve, the importance of managing relationships in a more complex
environment will dramatically increase and focus – “Being more commercially minded”..
To drive the greatest benefits, there will be the need to continue to review tools, processes and skills,
and look across all commercial activityprocurement to ensure the approach reflects the very best
practice.
Objectives:Key actions
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

To deliver efficiencies, savings and service quality improvements through a proactive and
consistent approach to supplier and contract management. This approach will also maximise
commercial opportunities, reduce risk throughout the supply chain and support the delivery of
best practice contract and supplier management.
Maximise the use of a range of tools and techniques including e-procurement and supplier
networks. The Accord e-CMS is the key source of information on the performance of suppliers.
Efficiencies, improvements and savings to be delivered through contract and supplier
relationship management.
Contract spend to be transparent and reported through the Accord eCMS and Spend Analysis
Dashboard.
Increase contract compliance management and the percentage of “Assigned Spend”.
Procurement Pprojects to be tracked bythrough milestones throughout the lifecycle, with clear
and consistent governance and documentation. in accordance with the Procurement Toolkit.
Increased focus on lessons learned to capture and apply these to other projects, with
embedded peer review for key projects.
Embed an improved approach to supply chain risk and business continuity planning across all
strategic and critical suppliers in accordance with the Guide to Managing Contract Criticality
and linked to corporate risk management.
To continue to develop the Accord eCMS and implement improvements accordingly.
Data and intelligence to be used to inform the thinking and decision making which will lead to
improved outcomes on projects.
Through contract management, the social value proposed as part of an accepted supplier
tender offer, whether through procurement or other means, shall be measured to ensure that
the benefits are indeed delivered within the life of the awarded contract.
To take measures to identify and mitigate modern day slavery risks in contract.
Page 11

Page 58

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 54:

PARTNERSHIP WORKING

The Challenge
To further enhance, develop and promote partnership working, locally and nationally, with other
contracting bodies such as other local authorities (South West and others), NHS, Dorset Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG), and the third sector; including partnership working with suppliers, and
benchmarking and networking through membership of the Central Buying Consortium (CBC).
The Council’s work at an operational level with Dorset CCG, and others, will support the mutual aim to
establish one Integrated Care System (ICS) – “Commissioning as One Council” with
partners.health and social care system.
Objectives:Key actions
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop strong working relationships with partners to ensure maximum benefit for the
residents of the local authority area of the Council, including price and performance
management.
Develop with partnersjointly, where possible, a commercialprocurement approaches to our
sharedjoint supply markets with the aim of increased market engagement and management in
line with relevant legislative requirements. Including jointly produced service specifications and
contracting approaches to increase economies of scale.
To achieve a growth in joint supplyly procured arrangements as relationships build and
develop, where strong collaborative approaches are delivered.
Ongoing engagement with partners to share commissioningprocurement intentionsplans in a
timely manner to identify suitable opportunities for partnership approaches.
Develop stronger links with other organisations (including business groups, LEP’s, Schools
and Colleges, VCS and community groups) to deliver best practice commercial
activity.procurement.
Promote collaborative working relationships with key suppliers to maximise opportunities for
both parties.
CommerciallyActive procurement influence, network, benchmarking at a national level through
the Council’s management board membership of the Central Buying Consortium (CBC) and
engagement with the procurement leads of the Local Government Authority (LGA).
Review definition of “local” (default being the local authority area of Dorset Council) when
procuring with others in order to take into consideration their geographical localities.

Page 12

Page 59

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 65:

MAXIMISING THE DORSET POUND

The Challenge
To deliver additional value for residents through the way the Council spends money on goods, works
and service. Consideration to the use of innovativeprocurement approaches, such as social value, to
help to maximise the Dorset Pound so it goes further than just the delivery of core services. “If one
Dorset £ is spent on delivery of services, can that same £ be used to also produce a wider benefit to
the community of Dorset?”
The Council to embed a clear message about its intention to maximise the Dorset Pound through
commissioning and procurement every time it communicates with the marketplace – “Being more
business friendly”..
Objectives:Key actions

•
•
•

•

Large contracts to be broken down into lots to encourage wider local supplier participation,
where it has been identified that this will secure better value.
In accordance with the National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS), to take a broad view of
value for money that includes the improvement of social welfare or wellbeing; encourage ways
of working and operational delivery that achieve social economic and environmental benefits.
Apply Economic considerations to procurement and contracting activity that will:
- Support the local economy by choosing, where possible, local suppliers close to the
point of service delivery.
- Support local businesses both directly and through activity encouraging sub-contracting
opportunities with Tier 1 suppliers, with an emphasis on developing local supply chains
in sectors that will deliver the biggest impact on economic growth, including
employment and skills opportunities, over a longer term.
- Make more use of early market engagement to capture views from a wide cross section
of potential local suppliers and service users, to help identify co-design and create
benefits from any subsequent contract and encourage new business to develop which
addresses key challenges and fill gaps in local provision.
Apply Social considerations to procurement and contracting activity that will:
- Support local businesses to create new jobs and support existing jobs for residents
- Support the creation of apprenticeships and the upskilling the Council’s residents and
their pay.
- Support the development of new forms of enterprises locally.
- Stimulate social innovation through institutions co-designing services with local
communities and utilising social economy and social enterprise organisations in
delivery.

Page 13

Page 60

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Text 1

PRINCIPLEOBJECTIVE 76:

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCY

The Challenge
There is clear scientific evidence to show that climate change is happening and is due to human
activity. This includes global warming and greater risk of flooding, droughts and heat wave. As a local
authority, Dorset Council has a responsibility to play its part in helping tackle this growing danger and
as such declared in the Council’sa Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy.y in May 2019.

Formatted: Font: Bold

The Council to apply environmental considerations within within commercial activities – “Being more
commercially minded”. procurement and contract activities.
Objectives;Key actions

•

•
•
•
•
•
•

To take into consideration the national priority outcome of “Tackling climate change and
reducing waste”, alongside the Council’s own local priorities as set out in the Council’s Climate
and Ecological Emergency Strategy, in accordance with the National Procurement Policy
Statement (NPPS).
As stated in Principle 2 – Effective Commissioning. To be able to demonstrate how
commissioning contributes to the Council’s environmental targets and these should be an early
consideration in the commissioning; not left until the procurement.
Reduce the distance which goods and services travel to the Council’s point of delivery.
Assist in stimulating technical innovation through encouraging the local market, and others, to
develop new technologies which address both goods and services requirements and enable
environmental advances.
Support improve the local environment particularly where innovation processes are utilised in
the design process and where creative individuals are commissionedprocured to design, build
and manage new facilities and infrastructure.
All commercial activity to consider how it can contribute to deliver the Council’s environment
aims in respect of carbon reduction; that this is recognised and valued.
Encourage and influence local suppliers, and others, to improve their sustainability practice
such as the use of:
o low carbon production techniques;
o recycled materials;
o alternatives to single use plastics, etc.

Page 14

Page 61

Formatted: Font: Arial Rounded MT Bold, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial Rounded MT Bold, 12 pt, Font color:
Text 1

Formatted: Font: Arial Rounded MT Bold, 12 pt, Font color:
Text 1

Social Value
Through commissioning and procurement, the Council will consider the requirements of the Social
Value Act 2012to enable and support the delivery of economic, social and environmental benefits that
will help meet the priorities and the ambitions of the Council’s Corporate Plan.
The Council will seek to use Social Value principles across all commissionedprocurement of services,
including those delivered directly, and of all contract values.

What is the Social Value Act?
The full name of the act is the “Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012” and it was passed in February
2012 then became law on 31st January 2013. It applies to the procuring of services, or the purchase
or hire of goods or carrying out works that is subject to The Public Contract Regulations 2015.
The Act states - “If a relevant authority proposes to procure or make arrangements for procuring the
provision of services, or the provision of services together with the purchase or hire of goods or the
carrying out of works … the authority must account how what is proposed to be procured might
improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of the relevant areas and, in
conducting the process of procurement, how it might act with a view of securing that improvement”.
It also states the authority must “consider whether to undertake any consultations as to matters to be
considered” under that process.
The Act asks public bodies to “account” for social value following recent amendment that replaced
“consider”. To comply with the Act, the Council needs to show that it has thought about these issues
and has thought about whether to consult on them. This to be evidenced by documenting the internal
process that took place to come to a decision on these issues, or by evidencing that there have been
discussions with the local provider market, service users, or community about them.

Proportionality
Whilste the Council recognises the benefits of social value it also acknowledges that measurement is
one of the key areas of challenge both in terms of what and how to measure. The resources expended
on measuring the impacts and value of services should be in proportion to the: total value; importance
of the service; level of impact anticipated; and the types of impacts likely to be generated.
This is important for several reasons:
•
•
•
•

achieving maximum social value from a contract should not be materially reduced by diverting
resources away from the frontline;
both the Council and suppliers are working with straitened resources;
if measurement requirements become complex or burdensome, it may favour larger scale
suppliers (of any sector) that have the capacity to respond;
measurement of social value needs to be meaningful, credible, and evaluated over the course
of a contract.

Page 15

Page 62

Applying Evaluation of Social Value within Procurement
The Council shall seek measurable, verifiable social value outcomes across all commissioning and
procurement of services that:
•
•
•

are relevant to what is proposed to be commissionedprocured and proportionate to the value
and its importance;
can legitimately be included in the contract specification;
will contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Suppliers will be required to propose within a procurement process, as part of their Tender offer, what
contribution to social value they can provide to support the aimed outcomes. Depending on the
procurement objective, the social value questions listed in Appendix A of this strategy are to be
applied within evaluation criteria.
Where relevant and proportionate, to include social value evaluation criteriain procurement that
reflects a minimum of 5% weighting out of the overall 100% of total evaluation criteria and provides
opportunities for suppliers to offer innovative approaches to deliver wider benefits.

Applying Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) within Procurement
Procurement will incorporate the following Council values, as part of CSR to encourage suppliers to
align with these values. These will be shown as statements within procurement exercises, as listed in
Appendix B of this strategy.
1. Mindful Employer
The Council is a signatory to The Charter for Employers who are positive about mental health
and as such it has made a commitment to improve the working life of its staff.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also become a signatory to reflect the Council’s own
commitment to staff wellbeing.
Mindful Employer is an NHS initiative run by Workways, a service of Devon Partnership NHS Trust, and
supports people with a mental health condition to find or remain in employment. It was originally
developed by employers in Exeter and launched in 2004. Initially as a purely local initiative, it has since
developed throughout the UK and has been launched abroad. Mindful Employer has been
recommended as good practice by the UK government and other national organisations.
For further details: http://www.mindfulemployer.net/about/

2. Dementia Friendly
The Council is registered with Dementia Friends who provide best practice guidance to
organisations, such as the Council, to work towards becoming dementia friendly.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also register to reflect the Council’s own commitment to
dementia awareness.
Dementia Friends is an Alzheimer’s Society Initiative and provides registered organisations access to
resources / information aimed to help employees to understand dementia and how it may affect a
person. Any type of organisation from large to small across the private, public and third sector can roll
out Dementia Friends to their workforce. For further details: https://www.dementiafriends.org.uk/

Page 16

Page 63

3. Armed Forces Covenant
The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is written and publicised
voluntary pledge from organisations who wish to demonstrate their concrete support for the
armed forces community.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also become a signatory to reflect the Council’s own
commitment to support the forces through services, policy and projects.
The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation to those who serve or who have served, and
their families, which says we will do all we can to ensure they are treated fairly and not disadvantaged in
their day-to-day lives. The Armed Forces Covenant relies on the people, communities, businesses of the
UK to actively support it in order to make a difference. For further details:
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant

4. Equality and Diversity
All organisations have statutory obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The Act replaces
previous anti-discrimination law, consolidating it into a single act, and recognises the following
protected characteristics:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Age
Disability
Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race (includes ethnic or national origin, colour and nationality
Religion and belief (including lack of belief)
Sex
Sexual orientation

The Council also has a Public Sector Equality Duty as part of the Equality Act 2010 which
requires it to have due regard to the need to:
•
•
•

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who
do not

The Council must consider the three parts of this duty when making decisions as employers
and service suppliers, and must ensure the organisations it contracts, to deliver goods and
services on its behalf, will support it in meeting the duty requirements.
Aim: To ensure that suppliers either have an equality and diversity policy or that they commit
to meet the requirements set out in the Council’s Dorset Equality Scheme.
The Equality
Act 2010 sets out the difference ways in which it is unlawful to treat someone, such as direct and indirect
discrimination, harassment, victimisation. The Act prohibits unfair treatment in the workplace and when
providing goods, facilities and services. The act also protects people from being treated less favourably
because of certain characteristics; known as ‘protected characteristics’, promote good relations. For
further details: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act-2010/what-equality-act

Page 17

Page 64

5. Apprenticeships
The Council supports the Government’s ambition in English Apprenticeships: Our 20:20 Vision
for apprenticeships to be an ‘attractive offer that young people and adults aspire to go into as a
high quality and prestigious path to a successful career’.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also support this Government ambition, contribute to the
development of the Dorset economy and to improving workforce skills.
Apprenticeships (in England): vision for 2020 is the Government’s plan on how it will increase the quality
and quantity of apprenticeships, achieving 3 million apprenticeships by 2020.
For further details: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/apprenticeships-in-england-vision-for2020

6. Environmental Management and Sustainability
The Council recognises that successful commissioning and procurement is not simply about
securing the lowest price but also about whole life considerations such as environmental
management and sustainability.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to define the sustainability considerations of their organisation
and address such issues.
Environmental management and sustainability are not simply about being “green” but involves
minimising environmental impact through the supply chain as part of commissioning and procurement.

7. Fostering Friendly Employers
As a Corporate Parent, the Council supports the recruitment and retention of foster carers by
promoting fostering to its own employees and the employees of its suppliers. This is to help
achieve better outcomes and life chances for children and young people in care.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to support the Council in its commitment to recruit and retain of
foster carers by promoting fostering among their employees and customers.
In Dorset, the Council strives to provide the best service for children in care, foster carers and their
families, and promote the wellbeing and development of each child and young person in care throughout
his or her childhood. For further details: https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/children-families/childrenssocial-care/fostering/fostering.aspx

Page 18

Page 65

Case for Commissioning
At an early stage, a clear and concise business case for each commissioning activity should be
developed that:
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

establishes the need for the commissioning investment that reflects, if applicable, previous
approaches, e.g. by using incumbent supplier data and management information
sets the out the objectives of the service delivery;
as part of feasibility and development deliberates the following as equal important factors in
order to achieve best value and a cost-effective model:
o cost
o quality
o environmental considerations
o social value considerations
o balance of risk between the Council and supplier
includes a proportionate Delivery Model Assessment (also known as Make versus Buy) to
provide an evidence-based analysis to support options appraisal; as part of this assessment
complex projects to include a ‘Should Cost Model’ to estimate the total cost of the service to
protect the Council from low bid bias.
appraises the main options for the service delivery that includes whether this is based on
outcomes, i.e. supplier freedom to operate; or input based, i.e. rigidly prescribed;
how, if outcome based, outcomes will be measured;
outlines the result of co-production, if that has been applied;
reflects of any stakeholder contribution and influence on the requirement;
provides a recommendation or a way forward for further analysis;
evidences that what is required from all parties is achievable:
includes evidence that the proposed commissioning:
o is a compelling case of the intervention, that provides holistic fit with other parts of the
Council – “Commissioning as One Council”;
o represents best value, affordable and achievable.
o is attractive to the market, can be procured if procurement is required, and is
commercially viable;

The Procurement Toolkit
Where commissioning requires procurement activity, the Council’s Procurement Toolkit sets out the
routes that will be followed for all procurement undertaken by the Council in accordance with the
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. The following key procedures shall underpin effective and
efficient procurement activity:
Procurement Initiation Document (PID)
This defines as concisely as possible all major aspects of the commissioning and forms the basis for
assessment of its overall success. Along with the Business Case it enables the governance structure
responsible to make the decision to give the approval to proceed and commit resources to it. If a
procurement does not appear viable or worthwhile it will not go ahead or will be referred to the Project
Team for further information.
Page 19

Page 66

Procurement Sourcing Plan
This provides the procurement routes available, based on the commissioning intentions, with a
recommendation on the most appropriate and why. Details include the implementation plan; the
contract management plan - and how these will be managed. Along with the PID, the sourcing plan
enables the governance structure responsible to make the decision to give approval for the tender to
be released (key approval being the Tender Evaluation Model).
Tender Evaluation Model
This sets out how a tender will be evaluated in relation to the requirements and must contain the right
criteria, scoring and weighting that ultimately secures the Most Economically Advantageous Tender
(MEAT). Particularly important is the criteria split in relationship to Price and Quality.
Price should attract at least 50% weighting unless there is robust evidence not to do so. This
model sits alongside the approval of the Procurement Sourcing Plan that secures the agreement to
release the tender.
Recommendation to Award Report
This outlines the key aspects on the outcome of the tender process. To provide enough detail to
enable the Council to make the final approval to award the contract in line with the governance
structure. Includes an explanation of how the winning offer demonstrates value for money and meets
the essential aspects of the commissioning requirement. Also stating any impacts of not awarding, e.g.
delay in service delivery, further procurement activity, etc.

Mitigating Fraud and Corruption Risks
Public sector commercial activity can be attractive to organised criminals. It is therefore important for
the Council to consider risks of fraud and corruption when commissioning and procuring goods, works
and services. Effective management of risk in these areas are part of being a risk-aware council, that
manages its resources efficiently to secure value for money outcomes. The Ministry of Housing and
Local Communities (MHCLG) defines such fraud and corruption as:
“… any fraudulent or corrupt activity occurring within the entire procurement lifecycle, from decision to
procure through to the conclusion of the contract and including all purchasing with a value below the
level of a formal tender process. This will therefore include commissioning, contract management and
purchasing, as well as the tendering process itself”. 
The Council mitigates the risk of fraud and corruption using various tools, such as:
E-tender System
The Council has a centralised electronic tender system to manage the procurement process. This
helps to guard against the risk of fraud and corruption by supporting transparency in the process.
Tender opportunities  are published through the system, independent tender openings are built into
the system, and all communication with tenderers are conducted and tracked via the system, reducing
the opportunities for direct contact between officers and tenderers.
Accord e-contract management system (e-CMS)
The Council has a centralised contracts database to record details of all awarded contracts, such as:
contract title; start and finished date; estimated total contract value; name of the organisation awarded
the contract. An external view of the database  is within the public domain therefore supporting
transparency and freedom of information. Within its internal view, the database is used to record
Page 20

Page 67

contract management activity such as contract extensions, reviews, and key performance indicators,
etc.

Spend Dashboard
Spend within the Council should be undertaken in line with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules
(CPRs). In some cases, spend is low value and as such not required under CPRs to be subject to
competition nor subject to a formal contract but secured with a purchase order only. The Spend
Dashboard provides visibility to the Council of this ‘un-assigned’ / ‘off contract spend’. This type of
spend is unlikely to be an indicator of anything untoward, however the Spend Dashboard acts as a
detection mechanism in terms of providing the ability to analyse spend not only for inappropriate
activity but also looking for commercial opportunities to make savings by consolidating spend.
 https://www.local.gov.uk/review-risks-fraud-and-corruption-local-government-procurement
 https://procontract.due-north.com/Register
 https://dorsetcouncil.accordcontracts.com/admin/login

Definitions
What is ‘Commissioning’?
Commissioning is about ensuring that the Council’s provides the right services, in the right place at the
right time. This means identifying needs, what’s available and what is not, planning and designing
evidence-based solutions.
What is ‘Procurement’?
Procurement is the process of acquiring goods, works and services from third parties. The process
includes options appraisal (the ‘make or buy’ decisions) which is a key stage of major projects. The
aim is to achieve best value for money.
What is ‘Contracting’?
Contracting is the process of negotiating and agreeing the terms of a contract, and on-going
management of the contract including payment and monitoring.
What is “Best Value for Money”
In the HM Treasury publication Managing Public Money  value for money is defined as:
‘It means the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the least outlay over the period of use of the
goods or services bought. It is not about minimizing upfront prices”
Optimum results are achieved by early market engagement as part of commissioning before
commencing procurement, to achieve good response from suppliers. Robust contract management, in
accordance with the Contract Management Procedure Guide and Guide to Managing Contract
Criticality, shall ensure what has been procured is being delivered to meet the initial requirements
within the contracted terms and conditions.
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money

Page 21

Page 68

Summary
The Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and Corporate Procurement Strategy has set out the
mechanism to ensure that the commercial approach to commissioning and procurement procurement
takes place in accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, that it is effective and delivers best value
to the residents of the Council’s local authority area. The strategy sets out the Council vision under
commercial principlesfive objectives that will collectively aim to deliver robust and effective
commissioning and procurement that will contribute to achieving value for money, create opportunities
for savings and maximising the Dorset Pound. It supports the focus of the Corporate Plan of Dorset
Council to make Dorset a great place to live, work and visit, priorities being:
•
•
•
•
•

Economic Growth
Unique Environment
Suitable Housing
Strong, Healthy Communities
Staying Safe and Well

The Council recognises that the context in which it operates will evolve locally. Ttherefore this Strategy
will need to be updated and refreshed, as necessary, to ensure that commissioning and procurement
activity continues to be innovative, efficient and effective.
This Strategy shall underpin Dorset Council’s procurement commissioning and procurement activities
as it moves through a programme of transformation and will be subject to review to ensure that it
continues to reflect the needs and aspirations of the Council.

Page 22

Page 69

Appendix A - Social Value Evaluation Questions
Evaluation Scoring
5 - Excellent
Comprehensive and detailed response that provides high levels of confidence that the
required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates excellent understanding
of social value.
3 - Good
Response addresses key issues and is adequately developed. Provides good levels of
confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates good
understanding of social value.
1 - Basic
Response addresses a limited range and is basically developed. Provides only limited levels
of confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates only
a basic understanding of social value.
0 - Unacceptable
No response or response fails to address issues and is poorly developed. Provides little or
no confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates little
or no understanding of social value.
Questions

Local Employment
Outcomes: Increased number of employment and training opportunities for local people of
Dorset, improving the employment opportunities for local people through training,
apprenticeships and offering employment to local workforce.
Outputs:
- How many new jobs (full time equivalent) will your organisation create within
Dorset?
- How many apprenticeships will your organisation support within Dorset?
- How many hours of voluntary work hours will your organisation provide to the
community of Dorset?
- How many people within Dorset will your organisation support back to work with
Coaching, mentoring, CV writing, mock interviews, etc?
- How many people within Dorset will your organisation support into employment
who face challengers, e.g. ex-offenders, disabled, etc?
- What % of your organisation’s staff live within Dorset or within 10 miles of
Dorset?
- What % of your organisation’s staff live within 30 miles of where the services are
being delivered?
- Any other measure

Buy Local
Outcomes: Support the local economy by choosing suppliers close to the point of service
delivery where possible, building the local economy by supporting local businesses and
building your organisation’s supply chain locally. In particular, by opening up procurement
opportunities to the local market.
Outputs:
Page 23

Page 70

-

What % of your organisation’s spend will be suppliers located in Dorset?
What % of your organisation’s spend will be with SMEs (less than 205
employees) located in Dorset?
What % of your total spend will be with the 3rd sector (Social Enterprises,
Charities, etc) located in Dorset?
Any other measure

Partners in Communities
Outcomes: Help to develop local communities – your organisation will need to evidence
how it will provide both practical and financial support to the local community of Dorset.
Outputs:
- Paid voluntary time given for staff to do community work (hours, days, number of
staff, etc)
- How many schools will your organisation support through, becoming a governor,
reading, mentoring, career advice, CV writing, etc
- Hours of paid voluntary time given by staff
- What is the value of donations raised / give to Charities?
- What is the value of spend with Social Enterprises?
- Number of disadvantage individuals supported
- Number of community organisations supported
- Number of community projects supported
- Any other measure

Good Employer
Outcomes: Staff development – your organisation will need to evidence how it will support
staff development and welfare.
Outputs:
- How much does your organisation spend on training per employee?
- Are flexible working hours provided?
- Does your organisation have Investors in People accreditation
(Gold/Silver/Bronze) or any other accreditation?
- Staff turnover improvement target %
- Does your organisation record and report on employee diversity?
- Any other measure

Green and Sustainable
Outcomes: Your organisation will need to evidence how it will protect the environment,
minimise waste and energy consumption and use other resources efficiently.
Outputs:
- CO2 reduction target in % or in tonnes
- Waste reduction target in %
- Waste to landfill reduction %
- Gas reduction %
- % of renewable energy used
- Water consumption reduction %
- Number of individuals in fuel poverty assisted with energy efficiency measures
- Environmental Management system (e.g. ISO14001) introduced and maintained
- Implement a Carbon Management / Environmental Policy to reduce impact of
CO2
- Single Use Plastic reduction %
- Any other measure
Page 24

Page 71

Ethical Procurement
Outcomes: The highest ethical standards employed in all operations and within the supply
chain.
Outputs:
- % of suppliers paid no later than the terms of the primary contract.
http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/
- % of invoices paid within 30 days (this is a legal requirement for public sector
contracts)
- % of spend on ethically sourced standards (e.g. Fairtrade)
- % of suppliers audited on ethical practices
- % weighting placed on social value when procuring
- Any other measure

Appendix B - Corporate Social Responsibility Statements
Statements
Page 25

Page 72

Mindful Employer
The Council is a signatory to The Charter for Employers who are positive about mental
health and as such it has made a commitment to improve the working life of its staff. For
further details: http://www.mindfulemployer.net/about/
Please state whether your organisation is also a signatory to The Charter for Employers or
can commit to be a signatory, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes, our organisation is also a signatory to The Charter for Employers
▪ Yes, our organisation can commit to be a signatory to The Charter for Employers if
awarded the contract / framework agreement.

Dementia Friendly
The Council is registered with Dementia Friends who provide best practice guidance to
organisations, such as the Council, to work towards becoming dementia friendly. For
further details: https://www.dementiafriends.org.uk/
Please state whether your organisation is also registered with Dementia Friends or can
commit to be a registered, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes, our organisation is also registered with Dementia Friends.
▪ Yes, our organisation can commit to be registered, if awarded the contract /
framework agreement.

Armed Forces Covenant
The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is written and publicised
voluntary pledge from organisations who wish to demonstrate their concrete support for
the armed forces community.
For further details: https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant
Please state whether your organisation is also a signatory to the Armed Forces Covenant
or can commit to be a signatory, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes, our organisation is also a signatory to Armed Forces Covenant
▪ Yes, our organisation can commit to be a signatory to The Charter for Employers, if
awarded the contract / framework agreement.

Equality and Diversity
Does your organisation have a written equality and diversity policy that covers the
following:
▪ colour
▪ nationality
▪ ethic or national origin
▪ religion and belief
▪ sex and sexual orientation
▪ recruitment, selection, training, promotion, discipline and dismissal
▪ victimisation, discrimination and harassment – making it clear that these are
disciplinary offences
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Is the answer is YES, submit (upload) a copy of your organisation’s Equality and
Diversity Policy
Page 26

Page 73

▪

If the answer is NO, as a response provide an explanation how your organisation
meets the requirements of the Equality Act 2010.
In the last three years has any contract with your organisation been terminated on grounds
of failure to comply with either or both of the following:
▪ legislation prohibiting discrimination, or
▪ contract conditions relating to equality and diversity in the provision of goods,
facilities or services?
If the answer is YES, provide details which should include what steps your organisation
has taken as a result.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes
▪ No
In the last three years has your organisation been the subject of a formal investigation by
the Equality and Human Rights Commission or an equivalent body on grounds of alleged
unlawful discrimination?
If the answer is YES, provide details of the investigation and any consequent judgement,
which should include what steps you have taken as a result of that investigation or finding.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes
▪ No

Apprenticeships
The Council supports the Government’s ambition in English Apprenticeships: Our 20:20
Vision for apprenticeships to be an ‘attractive offer that young people and adults aspire to
go into as a high quality and prestigious path to a successful career’. For further details:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/apprenticeships-in-england-vision-for-2020
Please state whether your organisation also supports Government’s ambition in English
Apprenticeships or can commit to support Apprenticeships, if awarded the contract /
framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
▪ Yes, our organisation also supports the Government’s ambition in English
Apprenticeship: Our 20:20 Vision
▪ Yes, our organisation can commit to support Apprenticeships, if awarded the
contract / framework agreement.

Fostering Friendly Employers
As a Corporate Parent, the Council supports the recruitment and retention of foster carers
by promoting fostering to its own employees and employees of its suppliers. For further
details:
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/children-families/childrens-socialcare/fostering/fostering.aspx
Please state whether your organisation also supports fostering.
Select the appropriate statement:
Page 27

Page 74

▪
▪

Yes, our organisation also promotes and supports fostering
Yes, our organisation can commit to support the Council by promoting fostering
among our employees and customers, if awarded the contract / framework
agreement.
Provide an explanation what steps your organisation takes to promote fostering.

Page 28

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Not tracked

Commercial Strategy Commissioning and Procurement

The mechanism to ensure that the commercial approach to
commissioning and procurement takes place in
accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, that it is
effective and delivers best value to residents

This Strategy shall underpin Dorset Council’s commissioning and procurement
activities as it moves through a programme of transformation and will be
subject to review to ensure that it continues to reflect the needs and
aspirations of the Council
DRAFT v6 – 21 07 21

Contents
Page 77

Page
Introduction

2

Statement

3



Public Procurement Reforms

3



National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)

3

Corporate Approach


4
5

Challenges and Opportunities

Being More Commercially Minded

6

The Commissioning Cycle

7

Strategy Vision

8



Principle 1: People, Skills and Development

8



Principle 2: Effective Commissioning

9



Principle 3: Strategic Sourcing

10



Principle 4: Contract Management

11



Principle 5: Partnership Working

12



Principle 6: Maximising the Dorset Pound

13



Principle 7: Climate and Ecological Emergency

14

Social Value

15



What is the Social Value Act?

15



Proportionality

15

Applying Evaluation of Social Value

16

Applying Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

16

Case for Commissioning

18

The Procurement Toolkit

19

Mitigating Fraud and Corruption Risk

20

Definitions

21

Summary

22

Appendix A – Social Value Evaluation Questions

23

Appendix B – Corporate Social Responsibility Statements

26

Introduction
As with all bodies in the public sector, Dorset Council is publicly accountable for how it manages its
budget.

Page 78

Page 1

It is estimated that 51% of the Council’s annual budget will be spent on buying external goods,
services and works. Spend ranging from Stationery to ICT Infrastructure (Corporate); Speech Therapy
to Residential Placements (People – Children); Adult Day Services to Residential Care (People –
Adults); School Transport to Surface Dressing (Place); School Nursing to Drug and Alcohol Treatment
Services (Public Health Dorset).
The effective commissioning and procurement of these and other future requirements is crucial in the
light of ever challenging budget reductions. In this context, delivery of the Council’s ambitions requires
resourcefulness, being more commercially minded and more business-like in the approach. Decisions
need to take account, as appropriate, of quality and all the costs that will be incurred by the Council
throughout the life of a contract period, or asset, not simply the initial price.
This Commercial Strategy is the mechanism to ensure that commissioning and procurement takes
place in accordance with the Council’s strategic aims, is effective and delivers best value to residents
of the Council’s local authority area. It supports the focus of the Corporate Plan of Dorset Council to
make Dorset a great place to live, work and visit, priorities being:






Economic Growth
Unique Environment
Suitable Housing
Strong, Healthy Communities
Staying Safe and Well

As with other local authorities, Dorset Council’s future looks set to be increasingly dependent to the
success of its local economy therefore there is a need to understand the impact of spending decisions
to the local tax base and ways to retain the Dorset Pound within that economy. For the purpose of this
Strategy, the definition of “Local” means the postcodes of the authority area of Dorset Council and
shall apply equally to residents, service users and suppliers.
Through commissioning and procurement activity, the Council’s goal is to achieve long-term
sustainable commercial success with the ambition to help deliver benefits to communities through
specifying additional social value, engaging with local suppliers and voluntary sector groups to
maximise the “Dorset Pound”. By the utilisation of social value criteria, the Council can also maximise
the social, environmental and economic impact, as being more commercial is so much more than the
purchasing of goods, services or works.

Statement
Delivering value for money is key to what commercial activity does.

Page 79

Page 2

This Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement, identifies and describes the Council’s
commercial principles, with explained objectives to deliver the ambition
It applies to all commissioning and procurement activity of Dorset Council.
It is recognised that the context in which the Council operates will continue to evolve, both locally and
nationally. Therefore, this strategy will be updated and refreshed as necessary to ensure that it reflects
the continued ambition to have a commercial approach to commissioning and procurement that is
innovative, efficient and effective.
This strategy is subordinate to the Council’s Constitution including Contract Procedure Rules and is
complemented by the following corporate guides:



Contract Management Procedure Guide
Guide to Managing Contract Criticality

Public Procurement Reforms
The consultation on a Green Paper on Procurement Reform closed in March 2021 and it is anticipated
a new Procurement Bill will be introduced to Parliament at some point from September 2021. The
purpose of the Bill is to streamline and simplify public sector procurement regulations, which currently
mirror EU rules. Making new UK procurement rules that are more modern and flexible, with more
focus on wider society benefit and community economic growth.
It involves replacing the four different regulations covering public contracts, utilities, defence and
concessions with a ‘single uniform framework’. There are also plans to replace the seven current
different procurement procedures with three procedures only.
This Strategy may be subject to revision depending on the outcome of the Public Procurement
Reforms.
National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS)
This Government Statement states to contracting authorities that public procurement should be
leveraged to support priority national and local outcomes for public benefit. The Statement sets out the
national priorities that all contracting authorities should have regard to their procurement where it is
relevant to the subject matter of the contract and it is proportionate to do so. It states that contracting
authorities should consider the following national priority outcomes alongside any additional local
priorities


Creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills
o increasing opportunities for entrepreneurship and helping new and/or small businesses
to grow, supporting higher economic growth and greater business creation;
o increasing employment opportunities particularly for those who face high barriers to
employment or who are located in disadvantaged areas;
o extending training opportunities, particularly for people in industries with known skills
shortages or in high growth sectors.



Tackling climate change and reducing waste
o contributing to the UK Government’s legally-binding target to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions to net zero by 2050;
o reducing waste, improving resource efficiency and contributing to the move towards a
circular economy;

Page 80

Page 3

o



identifying and prioritising opportunities in sustainable procurement to deliver additional
environmental benefits, for example enhanced biodiversity, through the delivery of the
contract.
Improving supplier diversity, innovation and resilience
o creating a more diverse supply chain to deliver the contract, which will better support
start-ups, small and medium-sized businesses and VCSEs in doing business on public
sector contracts;
o increasing innovation and the use of disruptive technologies and business models
throughout the supply chain, to deliver lower cost and/or higher quality goods and
services, and encourage the wider adoption of innovation;
o contributing to the development of scalable and future-proofed new methods to
modernise delivery and increase productivity.

This Commercial Strategy compliments and supports the National Procurement Policy Statement.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-0521-national-procurement-policystatement

Corporate Approach
In delivering value means to ensure that commercial arrangements and contracts awarded by the
Council provide great value for money, and that spend is used to deliver social value to residents and
take opportunities for added value. The corporate approach is to provide a central team of
procurement professionals within the Commercial and Procurement service, based on a Business
Partner Model, that will support the business areas of the Council by:


Providing professional advice and insight on markets, suppliers and commercial options to
support service delivery.



Leading the development of plans for how the Council shall spend money on third party
arrangements across the private, public and voluntary/community sectors.



Leading the Commercialisation Transformation Programme to develop and embed the
approach of “Being more commercially minded” through cross-directorate working and training.



Ensuring that contracts are commissioned, developed and awarded in accordance with
Procurement Legislation and the Council’s own Contract Procedure Rules.



Providing advice, support and training to business areas in managing contracts effectively in
line with this Corporate Commercial Strategy, and the Council’s Contract Management
Procedure Guide and the Council’s Guide to Managing Contract Criticality.



Driving Social Value and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through commercial activity
to encourage the Council, and its’ supply chain, to engage and spend with local suppliers and
communities to maximise the “Dorset Pound”.



Working with business areas to identify savings and capture opportunities through
commissioning, procurement and contract convergence to drive value from contracts

Challenges and Opportunities
The Council recognises that it faces many challenges, but equally opportunities, in the delivery of a
corporate approach to commissioning and procurement, and it needs to be more commercially minded
in order to tackle these challenges. Challenges and opportunities such as:

Page 81

Page 4



Managing market and cost pressures in an ongoing period of financial austerity for local
government, whilst in some sectors facing increasing price and demand from the private sector
that impacts the Council’s market influence.



Delivering and building on successful partnerships, e.g., NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning
Group, and driving collaboration through commissioning and procurement, both locally and
regionally.



Changes to legislation related to future commissioning intentions and changes to procurement
legislation.



Maximising the use of technology to drive simpler and more cost-effective processes for
commissioners, procurement, buyers and suppliers.



Ensuring that the Council has the necessary skills, capability and capacity to deliver its’
commercial priorities.



Exploring innovative contracting commercial models and collaboration with others.

Being More Commercially Minded
The term “Being more commercially minded” and other terms such as commercialism, commercial,
commercialisation etc mean different things to different people. For the Council, the definition of “being
more commercially minded” will be four themes shown below as separate, but connected,
workstreams that will compliment this Commercial Strategy alongside the Council’s Commercialisation
Transformation Programme.

Page 82

Page 5

Behaving in a more
business-like way
Adopting some of the
positive culture and
behaviours that are
associated with
commercial
organisations

Making money
Doing something that
generates profit

Being more
commercially
minded

Being business
friendly
To promote local
growth and prosperity

Commissioning as
One Council
Identify needs, develop
service models and the
market to meet those
needs in the most costeffective way, as One
Council

The Commissioning Cycle
As illustrated below, The Institute of Public Care (IPC) links within a commissioning cycle a series of
commissioning activities that are grouped under four key performance management elements:
Understand  Plan  Do  Review

Page 83

Page 6

For the Council to have effective third-party arrangements in place, commercial activity has a role to
play throughout the commissioning cycle; from Understand to Review.

Understand

Plan

Review

Do

Strategy Vision
This section describes the vision for the Council in terms of this Commercial Strategy –
Commissioning and Procurement.
The strategy principles provide the structure and framework from which the Council will plan and
prioritise the commercial activity of commissioning and procurement. The principles are summarised

Page 84

Page 7

below and will be subject to review each year of the strategy. Each of the principles are of equal
importance in ensuring the delivery of the Council’s commercial ambitions and to meet overall
purpose.

PRINICIPLE 1: PEOPLE, SKILLS AND DEVELOPMENT
The Challenge
To have a continued focus on people, skills and development. It is recognised that commercial
activity has a wider role to play in the development of contract management and other skills to enable
the Council to be commercially effective – “Being more commercially minded”.
To ensure that the professional skills and experience that the Council staff have are used in a wide
variety of projects through providing innovative commercial support, to a growing range of projects that
optimise the use of Councils assets, drive income and budget savings. Investing in, and supporting
these activities, will continue to be part of the Council’s commercial strategy.
Objectives:











To attract, develop and retain the very best procurement and commercial staff with the
professional, personal and technical skills to deliver value for money through commissioning,
procurement and contract management activity.
Encourage and embed coaching, high performance and positive behaviours. Maintain a
development and retention programme, capturing professional, personal and technical skills for
staff.
Place the best people by encouraging internal career development at all levels as well as
recruiting the best of external expertise where needed.
Invest in opportunities to grow the right talent including apprenticeships.
Continue and grow our commitment to a ‘learning culture’ organisation, through adopting a
“train the trainer” approach, and knowledge share groups, such as the commercial network
under the Commercialisation Transformation Programme.
Develop and deliver a high-quality training offer, including skills to develop a commercial
mindset. This to include, awareness and training in respect of: commissioning; procurement;
contract management and behaviours to enable improved Supplier Relationship Management
(SRM).
Ensure resources are effectively used, supported by effective planning of available resource
against the required workload using the ‘Forward Look’ within the Accord e-contract
management system (e-CMS) and other available tools.
Attract and retain knowledgeable staff who add value across a range of activities and bring
excellent commercial skills and understanding of services. This will enable the Council to
achieve the best commercial results and outcomes for residents.

PRINCIPLE 2:

EFFECTIVE COMMISSIONING

The Challenge
To identify needs, develop effective commissioning models and to develop the market to meet those
needs in the most cost-effective way. Commissioning to be a co-design process with others, internally
and externally, that: tests ideas; capacity and appetite for developing services to tackle outcomes;

Page 85

Page 8

develops innovative operating models; and outcome specifications. Approach “To commission as
One Council”.
It is recognised that commissioning option appraisals may not always conclude that procurement to
secure a supplier delivery is the best value route to meet the identified need. An appraisal may
conclude that insourcing, in part or wholly, represents the best value for the Council. Whatever the
route the commissioning should be an effective model.
Objectives:













To be able to demonstrate how the commissioning improves outcomes for Council’s residents
and contributes to the environmental targets set out in the Council’s Climate and Ecological
Emergency Strategy. These should be an early consideration in commissioning; not left until
procurement.
To be clear whether the commissioning is outcome based, i.e. to provide opportunities for
supplier innovation and methodologies; or whether it is input based, i.e. needs to be rigidly
prescribed.
Cost, quality, environmental and social value considerations, and the balance of risk between
the Council and supplier, are all equally important factors to deliberate as part of feasibility and
development in order to achieve best value and a cost-effective model.
Promote co-production, where applicable, that involves residents, communities and providers
working with the Council in designing and developing more effective services.
Should seek, where applicable, to empower Council customers, both internally and externally,
to self-manage and reduce dependency.
To use modern and progressive processes that provide opportunities for local suppliers, in
particular small / micro businesses, that allows them the potential to expand on their offer to
the Council as they grow and develop.
To engage early interested stakeholders, both internally and externally, to ensure there is an
opportunity for them to contribute and influence commissioning intentions.
Ensure compliance to legislation relative to the commissioning.
Commissioners to have full visibility of the financial costs, the market view, and performance
as well as service outcomes, in order to inform understanding of value for money in
subsequent commissioning.
Obtain detailed data and other management information from incumbent suppliers that
captures the evidence of what works and informs the future development of the required need.
To provide clear and proportionate business cases for each commissioning activity, prior to
commencement, in accordance with page 19 “Case for Commissioning”.

PRINCIPLE 3:

STRATEGIC SOURCING

The Challenge
The Council’s staff and suppliers expects that high quality and efficient strategic sourcing is
delivered. Simple and streamlined processes, delivered by experts with a strong focus on the supplier
experience will be a core part of commercial activity – “Being more business friendly”.

Page 86

Page 9

The Council will continuously review its commercial approach to ensure it responds to feedback from
suppliers and others, to develop future commercial opportunities accordingly. This includes the
eProcurement system that is used for procurement and optimising the statutory and legal boundaries
of relevant legislation, e.g. procurement rules, to deliver the best outcomes.
Underlying all commercial activities there needs to be a consistent culture of strong project
management and programme governance. Securing the very best value from all such activities, and a
robust, structured and well managed approach is vital. This will ensure that the Council is a using the
resource and skills it has, to deliver the very best return within decreased budgets.
Objectives:














Strategic sourcing activity (the end-to-end sourcing process) to be simple, clear and efficient.
To deliver a sourcing process that achieves successful outcomes and is a positive and
effective experience for suppliers and staff.
The procurement pipeline will be maintained using the “Forward Look” within Accord e-CMS
and will be visible across colleagues in Finance, Legal and Business Operations.
The delivery of all procurement projects to be robustly managed in a visible way and in line
with agreed methodology as set out in the Council’s Procurement Toolkit
Align strategic sourcing plans to the service outcomes to ensure a clear and robust programme
of sourcing activity.
Best practice is driven through the tools and national standards and these are reviewed
regularly.
Implement a consistent feedback process, with the results being used to make genuine and
sustainable improvements to processes, including both commissioning and procurement.
Provide consistent feedback to suppliers that are unsuccessful in securing Council business to
allow them to develop for future opportunities.
Ensure compliance to relevant legislation and the Council’s own rules, e.g. Contract Procedure
Rules, Scheme of Delegation, etc.
Define and understand the internal cost of strategic sourcing to ensure the end-to-end sourcing
process in the most efficient way.
Define and understand all costs, such as transportation, that are not necessary directly part of
the core delivery.
Explore commercial opportunities for all aspects of the strategic sourcing process.
Maximise the use of intelligence around suppliers, markets service design and demand,
through early market engagement and market development; consider how the commercial
approach and contract design could be set to address potential marker weaknesses.
Be ready to develop strategies for new areas of spend as business needs develop, transform
and embed in the Council.

PRINCIPLE 4: CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
The Challenge
Improving contract management continues to be a key deliverable for the Council. It is essential that
a contract management framework to strategic and critical suppliers is applied in accordance with the
Contract Management Procedure Guide and the Guide to Managing Critical Contracts. As suppliers

Page 87

Page 10

delivering services evolve, the importance of managing relationships in a more complex environment
will dramatically increase and focus – “Being more commercially minded”.
To drive the greatest benefits, there will be the need to continue to review tools, processes and skills,
and look across all commercial activity to ensure the approach reflects the very best practice.
Objectives:














To deliver efficiencies, savings and service quality improvements through a proactive and
consistent approach to supplier and contract management. This approach will also maximise
commercial opportunities, reduce risk throughout the supply chain and support the delivery of
best practice contract and supplier management.
Maximise the use of a range of tools and techniques including e-procurement and supplier
networks. The Accord e-CMS is the key source of information on the performance of suppliers.
Efficiencies, improvements and savings to be delivered through contract and supplier
relationship management.
Contract spend to be transparent and reported through the Accord eCMS and Spend Analysis
Dashboard.
Increase contract compliance management and the percentage of ‘Assigned Spend’.
Projects to be tracked by milestones throughout the lifecycle, with clear and consistent
governance and documentation.
Increased focus on lessons learned to capture and apply these to other projects, with
embedded peer review for key projects.
Embed an improved approach to supply chain risk and business continuity planning across all
strategic and critical suppliers in accordance with the Guide to Managing Contract Criticality
and linked to corporate risk management.
To continue to develop the Accord eCMS and implement improvements accordingly.
Data and intelligence to be used to inform the thinking and decision making which will lead to
improved outcomes on projects.
Through contract management, the social value proposed as part of any accepted supplier
offer, whether through procurement or other means, shall be measured to ensure that the
benefits are indeed delivered within the life of the awarded contract.
To take measures to identify and mitigate modern day slavery risks in contract.

PRINCIPLE 5:

PARTNERSHIP WORKING

The Challenge
To further enhance, develop and promote partnership working, locally and nationally, with other
contracting bodies such as other local authorities (South West and others), NHS, Dorset Clinical

Page 88

Page 11

Commissioning Group (CCG), and the third sector; including partnership working with suppliers,
benchmarking and networking through membership of the Central Buying Consortium (CBC).
The Council’s work at an operational level with Dorset CCG, and others, will support the mutual aim to
establish one Integrated Care System (ICS) – “Commissioning as One Council” with partners.
Objectives:










Develop strong working relationships with partners to ensure maximum benefit for the
residents of the local authority area of the Council, including price and performance
management.
Develop with partners, where possible, a commercial approach to shared supply markets with
the aim of increased market engagement and management in line with relevant legislative
requirements. Including jointly produced service specifications and contracting approaches to
increase economies of scale.
To achieve a growth in joint supply arrangements as relationships build and develop, where
strong collaborative approaches are delivered.
Ongoing engagement with partners to share commissioning intentions in a timely manner to
identify suitable opportunities for partnership approaches.
Develop stronger links with other organisations (including business groups, LEP’s, Schools
and Colleges, VCS and community groups) to deliver best practice commercial activity.
Promote collaborative working relationships with key suppliers to maximise opportunities for
both parties.
Commercially influence, network, benchmarking at a national level through the Council’s
management board membership of the Central Buying Consortium (CBC) and engagement
with the Local Government Authority (LGA).
Review definition of ‘local’ (default being the local authority area of Dorset Council) when
procuring with others in order to take into consideration their geographical localities.

PRINCIPLE 6: MAXIMISING THE DORSET POUND
The Challenge
To deliver additional value for residents through the way the Council spends money on goods, works
and service. Consideration to the use of innovative approaches, such as social value, to help to
maximise the Dorset Pound so it goes further than just the delivery of core services. “If one Dorset

Page 89

Page 12

£ is spent on delivery of services, can that same £ be used to also produce a wider benefit to the
community of Dorset?”
The Council to embed a clear message about its intention to maximise the Dorset Pound through
commissioning and procurement every time it communicates commercially with the marketplace –
“Being more business friendly”.
Objectives:







Large contracts to be broken down into lots to encourage wider local supplier participation,
where it has been identified that this will secure better value.
In accordance with the National Procurement Policy Statement (NPPS), to take a broad view of
value for money that includes the improvement of social welfare or wellbeing; encourage ways
of working and operational delivery that achieve social economic and environmental benefits.
Apply Economic considerations that will:
- Support the local economy by choosing, where possible, local suppliers close to the
point of service delivery.
- Support local businesses both directly and through activity encouraging sub-contracting
opportunities with Tier 1 suppliers, with an emphasis on developing local supply chains
in sectors that will deliver the biggest impact on economic growth, including
employment and skills opportunities, over a longer term.
- Make more use of early market engagement to capture views from a wide cross section
of potential local suppliers and service users, to help identify co-design and create
benefits from any subsequent contract and encourage new business to develop which
addresses key challenges and fill gaps in local provision.
Apply Social considerations that will:
- Support local businesses to create new jobs and support existing jobs for residents
- Support the creation of apprenticeships and the upskilling the Council’s residents and
their pay.
- Support the development of new forms of enterprises locally.
- Stimulate social innovation through institutions co-designing services with local
communities and utilising social economy and social enterprise organisations in
delivery.

PRINCIPLE 7:

CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCY

The Challenge
There is clear scientific evidence to show that climate change is happening and is due to human
activity. This includes global warming and greater risk of flooding, droughts and heat wave. As a local
authority, the Council has a responsibility to play its part in helping tackle this growing danger and as
such declared in the Council’s Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy.

Page 90

Page 13

The Council to apply environmental considerations within commercial activities – ‘Being more
commercially minded’.
Objectives:










To take into consideration the national priority outcome of “Tackling climate change and
reducing waste”, alongside the Council’s own local priorities as set out in the Council’s Climate
and Ecological Emergency Strategy, in accordance with the National Procurement Policy
Statement (NPPS).
As stated in Principle 2 – Effective Commissioning. To be able to demonstrate how
commissioning contributes to the Council’s environmental targets and these should be an early
consideration in the commissioning; not left until the procurement.
Reduce the distance which goods and services travel to the Council’s point of delivery.
Assist in stimulating technical innovation through encouraging the local market, and others, to
develop new technologies which address both goods and services requirements and enable
environmental advances.
Support improve the local environment particularly where innovation processes are utilised in
the design process and where creative individuals are commissioned to design, build and
manage new facilities and infrastructure.
All commercial activity to consider how it can contribute to deliver the Council’s environment
aims in respect of carbon reduction; that this recognised and valued.
Encourage and influence local suppliers, and others, to improve their sustainability practice
such as the use of:
o low carbon production techniques;
o recycled materials;
o alternatives to single use plastics, etc.

Social Value
Through commissioning and procurement, the Council will consider the requirements of the Social
Value Act 2012 to enable and support the delivery of economic, social and environmental benefits that
will help meet the priorities and the ambitions of the Council’s Corporate Plan.
The Council will seek to use Social Value principles across all commissioned services, including those
delivered directly, and of all contract values.

Page 91

Page 14

What is the Social Value Act?
The full name of the act is the ‘Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012’ and it was passed in February
2012 then became law on 31st January 2013. It applies to the procuring of services, or the purchase
or hire of goods or carrying out works that is subject to The Public Contract Regulations 2015.
The Act states - “If a relevant authority proposes to procure or make arrangements for procuring the
provision of services, or the provision of services together with the purchase or hire of goods or the
carrying out of works … the authority must account how what is proposed to be procured might
improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of the relevant areas and, in
conducting the process of procurement, how it might act with a view of securing that improvement”.
It also states the authority must “consider whether to undertake any consultations as to matters to be
considered” under that process.
The Act asks public bodies to “account” for social value following recent amendment that replaced
“consider”. To comply with the Act, the Council needs to show that it has thought about these issues
and has thought about whether to consult on them. This to be evidenced by documenting the internal
process that took place to come to a decision on these issues, or by evidencing that there have been
discussions with the local provider market, service users, or community about them.

Proportionality
Whilst the Council recognises the benefits of social value it also acknowledges that measurement is
one of the key areas of challenge both in terms of what and how to measure. The resources expended
on measuring the impacts and value of services should be in proportion to the: total value; importance
of the service; level of impact anticipated; and the types of impacts likely to be generated.
This is important for several reasons:





achieving maximum social value from a contract should not be materially reduced by diverting
resources away from the frontline;
both the Council and suppliers are working with straitened resources;
if measurement requirements become complex or burdensome, it may favour larger scale
suppliers (of any sector) that have the capacity to respond;
measurement of social value needs to be meaningful, credible, and evaluated over the course
of a contract.

Applying Evaluation of Social Value
The Council shall seek measurable, verifiable social value outcomes across all commissioning and
procurement of services that:




are relevant to what is proposed to be commissioned and proportionate to the value and its
importance;
can legitimately be included in the contract specification;
will contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Page 92

Page 15

Suppliers will be required to propose within a procurement process, as part of their Tender offer, what
contribution to social value they can provide to support the aimed outcomes. Depending on what is to
be commissioned, the social value questions listed in Appendix A of this strategy are to be applied
within procurement evaluation criteria.
Where relevant and proportionate, to include social value evaluation criteria that reflects a minimum of
5% weighting out of the overall 100% of total evaluation criteria and provides opportunities for
suppliers to offer innovative approaches to deliver wider benefits.

Applying Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Procurement processes will incorporate the following Council values, as part of CSR to encourage
suppliers to align with these values. These will be shown as statements, as listed in Appendix B of this
strategy.
1. Mindful Employer
The Council is a signatory to The Charter for Employers who are positive about mental health
and as such it has made a commitment to improve the working life of its staff.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also become a signatory to reflect the Council’s own
commitment to staff wellbeing.
Mindful Employer is an NHS initiative run by Work ways, a service of Devon Partnership NHS Trust, and
supports people with a mental health condition to find or remain in employment. It was originally
developed by employers in Exeter and launched in 2004. Initially as a purely local initiative, it has since
developed throughout the UK and has been launched abroad. Mindful Employer has been
recommended as good practice by the UK government and other national organisations.
For further details: http://www.mindfulemployer.net/about/

2. Dementia Friendly
The Council is registered with Dementia Friends who provide best practice guidance to
organisations, such as the Council, to work towards becoming dementia friendly.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also register to reflect the Council’s own commitment to
dementia awareness.
Dementia Friends is an Alzheimer’s Society Initiative and provides registered organisations access to
resources / information aimed to help employees to understand dementia and how it may affect a
person. Any type of organisation from large to small across the private, public and third sector can roll
out Dementia Friends to their work force. For further details: https://www.dementiafriends.org.uk/

3. Armed Forces Covenant
The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is written and publicised
voluntary pledge from organisations who wish to demonstrate their concrete support for the
armed forces community.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also become a signatory to reflect the Council’s own
commitment to support the forces through services, policy and projects.
The Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation to those who serve or who have served, and
their families, which says we will do all we can to ensure they are treated fairly and not disadvantaged in
their day-to-day lives. The Armed Forces Covenant relies on the people, communities, businesses of the
UK to actively support it in order to mak e a difference. For further details:
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant

Page 93

Page 16

4. Equality and Diversity
All organisations have statutory obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The Act replaces
previous anti-discrimination law, consolidating it into a single act, and recognises the following
protected characteristics:










Age
Disability
Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race (includes ethnic or national origin, colour and nationality
Religion and belief (including lack of belief)
Sex
Sexual orientation

The Council also has a Public Sector Equality Duty as part of the Equality Act 2010 which
requires it to have due regard to the need to:




eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who
do not

The Council must consider the three parts of this duty when making decisions as employers
and service suppliers, and must ensure the organisations it contracts, to deliver goods and
services on its behalf, will support it in meeting the duty requirements.
Aim:
To ensure that suppliers either have an equality and diversity policy or that they commit to
meet the requirements set out in the Council’s Dorset Equality Scheme.
The Equality Act
2010 sets out the difference ways in which it is unlawful to treat someone, such as direct and indirect
discrimination, harassment, victimisation. The Act prohibits unfair treatment in the work place and when
providing goods, facilities and services. The act also protects people from being treated less favourably
because of certain characteristics; k nown as ‘protected characteristics’, promote good relations. For
further details: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act-2010/what-equality-act

5. Apprenticeships
The Council supports the Government’s ambition in English Apprenticeships: Our 20:20 Vision
for apprenticeships to be an ‘attractive offer that young people and adults aspire to go into as a
high quality and prestigious path to a successful career’.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to also support this Government ambition, contribute to the
development of the Dorset economy and to improving workforce skills.
Apprenticeships (in England): vision for 2020 is the Government’s plan on how it will increase the quality
and quantity of apprenticeships, achieving 3 million apprenticeships by 2020.
For further details: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/apprenticeships -in-england-vision-for2020

Page 94

Page 17

6. Environmental Management and Sustainability
The Council recognises that successful commissioning and procurement is not simply about
securing the lowest price but also about whole life considerations such as environmental
management and sustainability.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to define the sustainability considerations of their organisation
and address such issues.
Environmental management and sustainability are not simply about being “green” but involves
minimising environmental impact through the supply chain as part of commissioning and procurement.

7. Fostering Friendly Employers
As a Corporate Parent, the Council supports the recruitment and retention of foster carers by
promoting fostering to its own employees and the employees of its suppliers. This is to help
achieve better outcomes and life chances for children and young people in care.
Aim: To encourage suppliers to support the Council in its commitment to recruit and retain of
foster carers by promoting fostering among their employees and customers.
In Dorset, the Council strives to provide the best service for children in care, foster carers and their
families, and promote the wellbeing and development of each child and young person in care throughout
his or her childhood. For further details: https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/children-families/childrenssocial-care/fostering/fostering.aspx

Case for Commissioning
At an early stage, a clear and concise business case for each commissioning activity should be
developed that:














establishes the need for the commissioning investment that reflects, if applicable, previous
approaches, e.g. by using incumbent supplier data and management information
sets the out the objectives of the service delivery;
as part of feasibility and development deliberates the following as equal important factors in
order to achieve best value and a cost-effective model:
o cost
o quality
o environmental considerations
o social value considerations
o balance of risk between the Council and supplier
includes a proportionate Delivery Model Assessment (also known as Make versus Buy) to
provide an evidence-based analysis to support options appraisal; as part of assessment
complex projects to include a ‘Should Cost Model’ to estimate the total cost of the service to
protect the Council from low bid bias.
appraises the main options for the service delivery that includes whether this is based on
outcomes, i.e. supplier freedom to operate; or input based, i.e. rigidly prescribed;
how, if outcome based, outcomes will be measured;
outlines the result of co-production, if that has been applied;
reflects of any stakeholder contribution and influence on the requirement;
provides a recommendation or a way forward for further analysis;
evidences that what is required from all parties is achievable:
includes evidence that the proposed commissioning:
o is a compelling case of the intervention, that provides holistic fit with other parts of the
Council – “Commissioning as One Council”;
o represents best value, affordable and achievable;

Page 95

Page 18

o

is attractive to the market, can be procured if procurement is required, and is
commercially viable.

The Procurement Toolkit
Where commissioning requires procurement activity, the Council’s Procurement Toolkit sets out the
routes that will be followed for all procurement undertaken by the Council in accordance with the
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. The following key procedures shall underpin effective and
efficient procurement activity:
Procurement Initiation Document (PID)
This defines as concisely as possible all major aspects of the commissioning and forms the basis for
assessment of its overall success. Along with the Business Case it enables the governance structure
responsible to make the decision to give the approval to proceed and commit resources to it. If a
procurement does not appear viable or worthwhile it will not go ahead or will be referred to the Project
Team for further information.
Procurement Sourcing Plan
This provides the procurement routes available, based on the commissioning intentions, with a
recommendation on the most appropriate and why. Details include the implementation plan; the
contract management plan - and how these will be managed. Along with the PID, the sourcing plan
enables the governance structure responsible to make the decision to give approval for the tender to
be released (key approval being the Tender Evaluation Model).
Tender Evaluation Model
This sets out how a tender will be evaluated in relation to the requirements and must contain the right
criteria, scoring and weighting that ultimately secures the Most Economically Advantageous Tender
(MEAT). Particularly important is the criteria split in relationship to Price and Quality.
Price should attract at least 50% weighting unless there is robust evidence not to do so. This
model sits alongside the approval of the Procurement Sourcing Plan that secures the agreement to
release the tender.
Recommendation to Award Report
This outlines the key aspects on the outcome of the tender process. To provide enough detail to
enable the Council to make the final approval to award the contract in line with the governance
structure. Includes an explanation of how the winning offer demonstrates value for money and meets
the essential aspects of the commissioning requirement. Also stating any impacts of not awarding, e.g.
delay in service delivery, further procurement activity, etc.

Mitigating Fraud and Corruption Risks
Public sector commercial activity can be attractive to organised criminals. It is therefore important for
the Council to consider risks of fraud and corruption when commissioning and procuring goods, works
and services. Effective management of risk in these areas are part of being a risk-aware council, that
manages its resources efficiently to secure value for money outcomes. The Ministry of Housing and
Local Communities (MHCLG) defines such fraud and corruption as:
“… any fraudulent or corrupt activity occurring within the entire procurement lifecycle, from decision to
procure through to the conclusion of the contract and including all purchasing with a value below the
level of a formal tender process. This will therefore include commissioning, contract management and
purchasing, as well as the tendering process itself”. 

Page 96

Page 19

The Council mitigates the risk of fraud and corruption using various tools, such as:
E-tender System
The Council has a centralised electronic tender system to manage the procurement process. This
helps to guard against the risk of fraud and corruption by supporting transparency in the process.
Tender opportunities  are published through the system, independent tender openings are built into
the system, and all communication with tenderers are conducted and tracked via the system, reducing
the opportunities for direct contact between officers and tenderers.
Accord e-contract management system (e-CMS)
The Council has a centralised contracts database to record details of all awarded contracts, such as:
contract title; start and finished date; estimated total contract value; name of the organisation awarded
the contract. An external view of the database  is within the public domain therefore supporting
transparency and freedom of information. Within its internal view, the database is used to record
contract management activity such as contract extensions, reviews, and key performance indicators,
etc.
Spend Dashboard
Spend within the Council should be undertaken in line with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules
(CPRs). In some cases, spend is low value and as such not required under CPRs to be subject to
competition nor subject to a formal contract but secured with a purchase order only. The Spend
Dashboard provides visibility to the Council of this ‘un-assigned’ / ‘off contract spend’. This type of
spend is unlikely to be an indicator of anything untoward, however the Spend Dashboard acts as a
detection mechanism in terms of providing the ability to analyse spend not only for inappropriate
activity but also looking for commercial opportunities to make savings by consolidating spend.
 https://www.local.gov.uk/review-risks-fraud-and-corruption-local-government-procurement
 https://procontract.due-north.com/Register
 https://dorsetcouncil.accordcontracts.com/admin/login

Definitions
What is ‘Commissioning’?
Commissioning is about ensuring that the Council’s provides the right services, in the right place at the
right time. This means identifying needs, what’s available and what is not, planning and designing
evidence-based solutions.
What is ‘Procurement’?
Procurement is the process of acquiring goods, works and services from third parties. The process
includes options appraisal (the ‘make or buy’ decisions) which is a key stage of major projects. The
aim is to achieve best value for money.
What is ‘Contracting’?

Page 97

Page 20

Contracting is the process of negotiating and agreeing the terms of a contract, and on-going
management of the contract including payment and monitoring.
What is “Best Value for Money”
In the HM Treasury publication Managing Public Money  value for money is defined as:
‘It means the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the least outlay over the period of use of the
goods or services bought. It is not about minimizing upfront prices”
Optimum results are achieved by early market engagement as part of commissioning before
commencing procurement, to achieve good response from suppliers. Robust contract management, in
accordance with the Contract Management Procedure Guide and Guide to Managing Contract
Criticality, shall ensure what has been procured is being delivered to meet the initial requirements
within the contracted terms and conditions.
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-public-money

Summary
The Commercial Strategy – Commissioning and Procurement has set out the mechanism to ensure
that the commercial approach to commissioning and procurement takes place in accordance with the
Council’s strategic aims, that it is effective and delivers best value to the residents of the Council’s
local authority area. The strategy sets out the Council vision under commercial principles that will
collectively aim to deliver robust and effective commissioning and procurement that will contribute to
achieving value for money, create opportunities for savings and maximising the Dorset Pound. It
supports the focus of the Corporate Plan of Dorset Council to make Dorset a great place to live, work
and visit, priorities being:





Economic Growth
Unique Environment
Suitable Housing
Strong, Healthy Communities

Page 98

Page 21



Staying Safe and Well

The Council recognises that the context in which it operates will evolve, both locally and nationally.
Therefore, this Strategy will need to be updated and refreshed, as necessary, to ensure that the
commercial approach to commissioning and procurement continues to be innovative, efficient and
effective.
This Strategy shall underpin Dorset Council’s commissioning and procurement activities as it moves
through a programme of transformation and will be subject to review to ensure that it continues to
reflect the needs and aspirations of the Council.

Appendix A - Social Value Evaluation Questions
Evaluation Scoring
5 - Excellent
Comprehensive and detailed response that provides high levels of confidence that the
required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates excellent understanding
of social value.
3 - Good
Response addresses key issues and is adequately developed. Provides good levels of
confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates good
understanding of social value.
1 - Basic
Response addresses a limited range and is basically developed. Provides only limited levels
of confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates only
a basic understanding of social value.
0 - Unacceptable

Page 99

Page 22

No response or response fails to address issues and is poorly developed. Provides little or
no confidence that the required social value and delivery will be achieved. Demonstrates little
or no understanding of social value.
Questions

Local Employment
Outcomes: Increased number of employment and training opportunities for local people of
Dorset, improving the employment opportunities for local people through training,
apprenticeships and offering employment to local workforce.
Outputs:
- How many new jobs (full time equivalent) will your organisation create within
Dorset?
- How many apprenticeships will your organisation support within Dorset?
- How many hours of voluntary work hours will your organisation provide to the
community of Dorset?
- How many people within Dorset will your organisation support back to work with
Coaching, mentoring, CV writing, mock interviews, etc?
- How many people within Dorset will your organisation support into employment
who face challengers, e.g. ex-offenders, disabled, etc?
- What % of your organisation’s staff live within Dorset or within 10 miles of
Dorset?
- What % of your organisation’s staff live within 30 miles of where the services are
being delivered?
- Any other measure

Buy Local
Outcomes: Support the local economy by choosing suppliers close to the point of service
delivery where possible, building the local economy by supporting local businesses and
building your organisation’s supply chain locally. In particular, by opening up procurement
opportunities to the local market.
Outputs:
- What % of your organisation’s spend will be suppliers located in Dorset?
- What % of your organisation’s spend will be with SMEs (less than 205
employees) located in Dorset?
- What % of your total spend will be with the 3rd sector (Social Enterprises,
Charities, etc) located in Dorset?
- Any other measure

Partners in Communities

Outcomes: Help to develop local communities – your organisation will need to evidence
how it will provide both practical and financial support to the local community of Dorset.
Outputs:
- Paid voluntary time given for staff to do community work (hours, days, number of
staff, etc)
- How many schools will your organisation support through, becoming a governor,
reading, mentoring, career advice, CV writing, etc
- Hours of paid voluntary time given by staff
- What is the value of donations raised / give to Charities?
- What is the value of spend with Social Enterprises?
- Number of disadvantage individuals supported
- Number of community organisations supported

Page 100

Page 23

-

Number of community projects supported
Any other measure

Good Employer

Outcomes: Staff development – your organisation will need to evidence how it will support
staff development and welfare.
Outputs:
- How much does your organisation spend on training per employee?
- Are flexible working hours provided?
- Does your organisation have Investors in People accreditation
(Gold/Silver/Bronze) or any other accreditation?
- Staff turnover improvement target %
- Does your organisation record and report on employee diversity?
- Any other measure

Green and Sustainable
Outcomes: Your organisation will need to evidence how it will protect the environment,
minimise waste and energy consumption and use other resources efficiently.
Outputs:
- CO2 reduction target in % or in tonnes
- Waste reduction target in %
- Waste to landfill reduction %
- Gas reduction %
- % of renewable energy used
- Water consumption reduction %
- Number of individuals in fuel poverty assisted with energy efficiency measures
- Environmental Management system (e.g. ISO14001) introduced and maintained
- Implement a Carbon Management / Environmental Policy to reduce impact of
CO2
- Single Use Plastic reduction %
- Any other measure

Ethical Procurement
Outcomes: The highest ethical standards employed in all operations and within the supply
chain.
Outputs:
- % of suppliers paid no later than the terms of the primary contract.
http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/
- % of invoices paid within 30 days (this is a legal requirement for public sector
contracts)
- % of spend on ethically sourced standards (e.g. Fairtrade)
- % of suppliers audited on ethical practices
- % weighting placed on social value when procuring
- Any other measure

Page 101

Page 24

Appendix B - Corporate Social Responsibility Statements
Statements

Mindful Employer
The Council is a signatory to The Charter for Employers who are positive about mental
health and as such it has made a commitment to improve the working life of its staff. For
further details: http://www.mindfulemployer.net/about/
Please state whether your organisation is also a signatory to The Charter for Employers or
can commit to be a signatory, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes, our organisation is also a signatory to The Charter for Employers
 Yes, our organisation can commit to be a signatory to The Charter for Employers if
awarded the contract / framework agreement.

Dementia Friendly
The Council is registered with Dementia Friends who provide best practice guidance to
organisations, such as the Council, to work towards becoming dementia friendly. For
further details: https://www.dementiafriends.org.uk/
Please state whether your organisation is also registered with Dementia Friends or can
commit to be a registered, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.

Page 102

Page 25

Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes, our organisation is also registered with Dementia Friends.
 Yes, our organisation can commit to be registered, if awarded the contract /
framework agreement.

Armed Forces Covenant
The Council is a signatory to the Armed Forces Convent which is written and publicised
voluntary pledge from organisations who wish to demonstrate their concrete support for
the armed forces community.
For further details: https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/armed-forces-covenant
Please state whether your organisation is also a signatory to the Armed Forces Covenant
or can commit to be a signatory, if awarded the contract / framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes, our organisation is also a signatory to Armed Forces Covenant
 Yes, our organisation can commit to be a signatory to The Charter for Employers, if
awarded the contract / framework agreement.

Equality and Diversity
Does your organisation have a written equality and diversity policy that covers the
following:
 colour
 nationality
 ethic or national origin
 religion and belief
 sex and sexual orientation
 recruitment, selection, training, promotion, discipline and dismissal
 victimisation, discrimination and harassment – making it clear that these are
disciplinary offences
Select the appropriate statement:
 Is the answer is YES, submit (upload) a copy of your organisation’s Equality and
Diversity Policy
 If the answer is NO, as a response provide an explanation how your organisation
meets the requirements of the Equality Act 2010.
In the last three years has any contract with your organisation been terminated on grounds
of failure to comply with either or both of the following:
 legislation prohibiting discrimination, or
 contract conditions relating to equality and diversity in the provision of goods,
facilities or services?
If the answer is YES, provide details which should include what steps your organisation
has taken as a result.
Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes
 No
In the last three years has your organisation been the subject of a formal investigation by
the Equality and Human Rights Commission or an equivalent body on grounds of alleged
unlawful discrimination?
If the answer is YES, provide details of the investigation and any consequent judgement,
which should include what steps you have taken as a result of that investigation or finding.
Select the appropriate statement:

Page 103

Page 26




Yes
No

Apprenticeships
The Council supports the Government’s ambition in English Apprenticeships: Our 20:20
Vision for apprenticeships to be an ‘attractive offer that young people and adults aspire to
go into as a high quality and prestigious path to a successful career’. For further details:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/apprenticeships-in-england-vision-for-2020
Please state whether your organisation also supports Government’s ambition in English
Apprenticeships or can commit to support Apprenticeships, if awarded the contract /
framework agreement.
Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes, our organisation also supports the Government’s ambition in English
Apprenticeship: Our 20:20 Vision
 Yes, our organisation can commit to support Apprenticeships, if awarded the
contract / framework agreement.

Fostering Friendly Employers
As a Corporate Parent, the Council supports the recruitment and retention of foster carers
by promoting fostering to its own employees and employees of its suppliers. For further
details:
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/children-families/childrens-socialcare/fostering/fostering.aspx
Please state whether your organisation also supports fostering.
Select the appropriate statement:
 Yes, our organisation also promotes and supports fostering
 Yes, our organisation can commit to support the Council by promoting fostering
among our employees and customers, if awarded the contract / framework
agreement.
Provide an explanation what steps your organisation takes to promote fostering.

Page 104

Page 27

Place and Resources Overview Committee – DRAFT Forward Plan
Title

Description

Date of
committee
meeting

Requested
by

Report author

Portfolio Holder

Draft Council Plan,
Performance
Measures and Risk
Register

To discuss and agree
the updated Council
Plan, performance
measures and risk
register

17
September
2021

Rebecca
Forrester Business
Partner –
Policy,
Research &
Performance

Rebecca
Forrester Business
Partner – Policy,
Research &
Performance

Cllr Peter Wharf Portfolio Holder
for Corporate
Development &
Change

Other
meetings?
(CLT / SLT /
Cabinet)
People &
Health
Overview
Committee – 2
September
2021
Cabinet – 5
October 2021

Page 105

Review of Commercial
Strategy –
Commissioning and
Procurement Overview

17
September
2021

Chairman of
committee &
Officers

Dawn Adams –
Service
Manager for
Commercial &
Procurement

Cllr Gary Suttle –
Portfolio Holder
for Finance,
Commercial &
Capital Strategy

Cabinet – 2
November
2021

Agenda Item 8

To consider the
proposed revision to
the current Corporate
Procurement
Strategy. Content to
have more emphasis
on commercial &
commissioning. In
light of the pending
Public Procurement
Reforms & the
recently released
National Procurement
Policy Statement
(NPPS)

Page 106

Title

Description

Taxi Licensing Policy

Household Recycling
Centre (HRC) Vehicle
Access Policy

Date of
committee
meeting

Requested by

Report author

Portfolio Holder

A new Dorset Council 19 October
Taxi Licensing Policy 2021
for Hackney Carriage
& Private Hire
vehicles, drivers &
operators, bringing
together the
predecessor
Council’s Taxi
Licensing policies into
one policy for the
whole of the DC area

John
Newcombe –
Service
Manager for
Licensing &
Community
Safety

John
Newcombe Service
Manager for
Licensing &
Community
Safety

Cllr Jill Haynes –
Portfolio Holder
for Customer &
Community
Services

Review of legacy
policy controlling
access to HRCs.
Includes use of vans,
hire vans, trailers &
other vehicle types.
Policy applicable to
all Dorset Council
wards. A public
consultation will be
conducted to inform
outcomes

Gemma
Clinton – Head
of Commercial
Waste &
Strategy
Ian Manley –
Contracts
Team Leader

Gemma
Clinton – Head
of Commercial
Waste &
Strategy
Ian Manley –
Contracts
Team Leader

Cllr Jill Haynes –
Portfolio Holder
for Customer &
Community
Services

19 October
2021

Other
meetings?
(CLT / SLT /
Cabinet)
Licensing
Committee 17 November
2021

Cabinet 7
December
2021

Page 107

Title

Description

Community
Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) Governance

Phase 2 Parking
Charges Project

Review of policies
from Policy Library –
policies to be
prioritised and
allocated to
committee dates

Date of
committee
meeting

Requested by

Report author

Portfolio
Holder

Review of CIL
19 October
governance
2021
arrangements to
ensure that developer
contributions end up
in the right place &
that contributions are
put back into
community facilities

Recommendation
from Place &
Resources
Scrutiny
Committee

Andrew Galpin
–
Implementation
Team Leader

Cllr David
Walsh –
Portfolio Holder
for Planning

To seek support for
19 October
the changes that
2021
Parking Services plan
to make to charging
in car parks, on-street
parking and for car
park permits

Officer request

Elizabeth
Cllr Ray Bryan – Cabinet – 2
Murray – Project Portfolio Holder November
Manager
for Highways,
2021
Travel &
Environment

16
December
2021
10
February
2022
21 April
2022

Other
meetings?
(CLT / SLT /
Cabinet)
Cabinet – 2
November
2021

This page is intentionally left blank

The Cabinet Forward Plan - October 2021 - January 2022 (Publication date 6 September 2021)
For the period 1 OCOTBER 2021 to 31 JANUARY 2022
Explanatory Note:
This Forward Plan contains future items to be considered by the Cabinet and Council. It is published 28 days before the next meeting of the Committee.
The plan includes items for the meeting including key decisions. Each item shows if it is ‘open’ to the public or to be considered in a private part of the
meeting.
Definition of Key Decisions
Key decisions are defined in Dorset Council's Constitution as decisions of the Cabinet which are likely to -

Page 109

(a) to result in the relevant local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the relevant
local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (Thresholds - £500k); or

(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of
the relevant local authority.”

In determining the meaning of “significant” for these purposes the Council will have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State in
accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000 Act. Officers will consult with lead members to determine significance and sensitivity.
Cabinet Portfolio Holders 2021/22
Spencer Flower
Leader / Governance, Performance and Communications
Peter Wharf
Deputy Leader / Corporate Development and Change
Gary Suttle
Finance, Commercial and Capital Strategy
Ray Bryan
Highways, Travel and Environment
Tony Ferrari
Economic Growth, Assets & Property
David Walsh
Planning
Jill Haynes
Customer and Community Services
Andrew Parry
Children, Education, Skills and Early Help
Laura Miller
Adult Social Care and Health
Graham Carr-Jones
Housing and Community Safety

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

October
Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) and budget strategy

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Deputy Leader Corporate
Development and
Change, Leader of the
Council

Rebecca Forrester,
Business Intelligence &
Performance
rebecca.forrester@dorsetco
uncil.gov.uk , Bridget
Downton, Head of Business
Insight and Corporate
Communications
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Portfolio Holder for
Economic Growth,
Assets and Property,
Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

David Walsh, Service
Manager for Growth and
Economic Regeneration
David.walsh@dorsetcouncil
.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To receive a budget update for
2022/23.

Page 110

Draft Council Plan Performance
Measures and Risk Register
Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
People
and
Health
Overview Committee
17 Sep 2021
2 Sep 2021

To discuss and agree the updated
council plan.

Dorset Skills Commission
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
The establishment of a dedicated
Commission will oversee an effective
and at pace response to a jobs-led
approach to COVID-19 economic
recovery. It would also provide an
objective and independent review of
the future Dorset Skills landscape,
helping to shape a world-class skill
and learning infrastructure for all
communities.

Subject / Decision

LGA Finance Peer Review - Report
and Action Plan

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Portfolio Holder for
Economic Growth,
Assets and Property,
Leader of the Council,
Deputy Leader Corporate
Development and
Change, Portfolio
Holder for Finance,
Commercial and
Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Adult Social Care and
Health

Lesley Hutchinson,
Corporate Director for
Adults Commissioning
Lesley.Hutchinson@dorsetc
c.gov.uk
Vivienne Broadhurst

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Highways, Travel and
Environment

Ken Buchan, Head of
Environment and Wellbeing
k en.buchan@dorsetcouncil.
gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Page 111

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Fully exempt

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Fully exempt
Seeking agreement that payments in
excess of £500 can be made in
relation to the project.

Officer Contact

Decision Date
5 Oct 2021

This report will see the publication of
the LGA finance peer review report
and the accompanying action plan to
address the recommendations.

Weymouth Quay Regeneration
Project - agreement to make
payments over £500,000

Portfolio Holder

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Tricuro Options Paper

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

November

Phase 2 Parking Charges Project

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
2 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Highways, Travel and
Environment

Elizabeth Murray, Strategic
Park ing Project Manager
elizabeth.murray@dorsetcc.
gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
2 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Planning

Andrew Galpin,
Infrastructure & Delivery
Planning Manager
andrew.galpin@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
2 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Children, Education,
Skills and Early Help

Vik Verma, Interim Director
of Education and Learning
vik .verma@dorsetcc.gov.uk
Executive Director, People Children (Theresa Leavy)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
2 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To consider a report on the Phase 2
Parking Charges Project.

Page 112

Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
expenditure

Place
and
Resources
Scrutiny Committee
19 Oct 2021

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
Recommendation from Place and
Resources Scrutiny Committee
Position report on CIL governance
and expenditure to date.
Dorset Council High Needs Block
Management Strategy
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Quarter 2 (Q2) Financial
Management Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

To consider the Council’s revenue
budget position at the end of Q2 and
the changes since Q1
Enabling Communities Strategy

Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)
Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

People
and
Health
Overview Committee
9 Nov 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Laura Cornette, Business
Partner - Communities and
Partnerships
Laura.cornette@dorsetcoun
cil.gov.uk
Chief Executive (Matt
Prosser)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
2 Nov 2021

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
17 Sep 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Dawn Adams, Service
Manager for Commercial
and Procurement
dawn.adams@dors etcounci
l.gov.uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
7 Dec 2021

Place
and
Resources
Overview Committee
21 Oct 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Customer and
Community Services

Gemma Clinton, Head of
Commercial Waste and
Strategy
gemma.clinton@dorsetwast
epartnership.gov.uk
Executive Director, Place
(John Sellgren)

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
The Communities Strategy will shape
how Dorset Council engages and
enables of communities.

Page 113

Review of Commercial Strategy Commissioning and Procurement
Overview

Officer Contact

Key Decision - No
Public Access - Open
To consider a proposed revision to
the current Corporate Procurement
Strategy.
December

Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
Vehicle Access Policy
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
Review of legacy policy controlling
access to HRCs. This includes the
use of vans, hire vans, trailers and
other vehicle types. Policy is

Subject / Decision

Decision Maker

Date the
Decision is
Due

Other Committee(s)
consulted and
Date of meeting(s)

Portfolio Holder

Officer Contact

applicable to all Dorset Council
wards. A public consultation will be
conducted to inform outcomes.
January 2022

Quarter 3 (Q3) Financial
Management Report

Decision Maker
Cabinet

Decision Date
18 Jan 2022

Decision Maker
Dorset Council

Decision Date
15 Feb 2022

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Executive Director,
Corporate Development Section 151 Officer (Aidan
Dunn)

Portfolio Holder for
Finance, Commercial
and Capital Strategy

Jim McManus, Corporate
Director - Finance and
Commercial
J.McManus@dorsetcc.gov.
uk
Corporate Director, Legal
and Democratic Services Monitoring Officer
(Jonathan Mair)

Page 114

Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
To consider the Council’s revenue
budget position at the end of Q3 and
the changes since Q2
Budget Strategy Report
Key Decision - Yes
Public Access - Open
The Council is required to set a
balanced revenue budget, and to
approve a level of council tax as an
integral part of this.

Cabinet
Place
and
Resources
Scrutiny Committee
People and Health Scrutiny
Committee
18 Jan 2022
10 Dec 2021
10 Dec 2021

Private/Exempt Items for Decision
Each item in the plan above marked as ‘private’ will refer to one of the following paragraphs.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

7.

Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour r elations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority.
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.
Information which reveals that the shadow council proposes:(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Page 115
7

This page is intentionally left blank

